

# THE SOUND DOCTRINE

# **1000 YEARS IN THE WORLD OF DARKNESS**

Source & Contact: Website: https://www.mcreveil.org E-mail: mail@mcreveil.org

# Jesus Christ is the True God And Eternal Life

But you, Daniel, shut up the words, and seal the book until the time of the end; many shall run to and fro, and knowledge shall increase. Daniel 12:4

Go your way, Daniel, for the words are closed up and sealed till the time of the end. Many shall be purified, made white, and refined, but the wicked shall do wickedly; and none of the wicked shall understand, but the wise shall understand.

Daniel 12:9-10

\*\*\*

Before you begin reading this Teaching, Take a few minutes and meditate on the following question:

Where will you spend your Eternity?

In Heaven?

Or

### In Hell?

Hell is Real, and it is Eternal. Think about it!

Enjoy your Reading! May God reveal Himself to you!

# Warnings

# This Book is free of charge and can in no way constitute a source of business.

You are free to copy this Book for your preaching, or for distribution, or also for your Evangelism on Social Media, provided that its content is not modified or altered in any way, and that the website mcreveil.org is cited as the source.

Woe to you, greedy agents of satan who will try to market these teachings and testimonies!

Woe to you, sons of satan who like to publish these teachings and testimonies on Social Media while hiding the address of the website www.mcreveil.org, or falsifying their contents!

Know that you can escape the justice system of men, but you certainly will not escape the judgment of God.

You snakes! You brood of vipers! How will you escape being condemned to Hell? Matthew 23:33.

# Nota Bene

This Book is regularly updated. We recommend that you download the latest version from www.mcreveil.org.

# **Table of Contents**

Warnings	3
1- Introduction	6
2- Beginning of the testimony	6
3- Humans' master plan	7
4- The kingdom of darkness beneath the deep sea	7
5- My work in California	8
6- The anti-God kingdom1	L <b>O</b>
7- Introduction of idol worship in the Church 1	L <b>O</b>
8- How do we penetrate into the body of human beings?	L <b>2</b>
9- Demons' annual meetings1	L <b>2</b>
10- How many people make heaven every year? 1	13
11- Danger of wearing jewelleries1	15
12- What does the Bible say about jewellery?1	16
13- The plan to send me to Nigeria 1	L <b>7</b>
14- There must be a difference between Deborah and Delilah	L7
15- Power of fake ministers 1	19
16- Calling of fake ministers 2	20
17- Blessing and breakthrough: satan agents' messages	22
18- Satanic women clothing2	23
19- Satanic women hair 2	24
20- Women wearing trousers2	26
21- Danger of attending fake churches 2	27
22- My encounters with Jesus Christ2	28
22.1- My first encounter with Jesus2	29
22.2- My second encounter with Jesus	32
22.3- My third encounter with Jesus	33
22.4- My fourth encounter with Jesus	35
23- Lessons to be learned	35
23.1- Can anyone leave the world of darkness and come to earth?.3	36
23.2- Notion of stars of men3	36
23.3.1- Joseph's case	37
23.3.2- Case of Moses	38
23.3.3- Case of Jeremiah	39
23.3.4- Case of Jesus Christ	39
23.3.5- Case of John the Baptist4	łO
23.4- Notion of the "Master Plans" of Humans	12

23.5- Can the world of darkness change the plan that God has humans?	
23.5.1- Case of Moses	42
23.5.2- Case of Rahab	43
23.5.3- Case of Ruth	44
23.5.4- Paul's case	46
24- Call to Repentance	47
24.1- Message to sorcerers and other satanists	47
24.2- Message to the true children of God	47
25- Conclusion	48
Invitation	49

(Updated on 01 01 2024)

# 1- Introduction

Dear brethren and dear friends, we are pleased to put at your disposal an excerpt from this testimony that may seem unreal, but which is justified in the light of the teaching on Discernment that the Lord has given us. It is the story of someone who spent nearly 1000 (one thousand) years in the world of darkness, before meeting Jesus Christ. She came to earth several times, sometimes as a woman, sometimes as a man, sometimes as a white person, sometimes as a black person, according to the mission entrusted to her. And whenever she came to earth, she lived her life normally, died normally, but returned to earth through another birth.

This testimony will open your eyes to how true Servants of God are the target of the world of darkness hundreds of years before they are born. This testimony is a valuable tool for the true Servants of God. Not only will it give them a good understanding of how the war against them began long before they were born, it will also help them better understand their surroundings, and their spiritual and physical environments. As you can see, all these testimonies only confirm the teachings on Discernment and Spiritual Warfare that we made available to you several years ago.

It is just amazing to see that God in His infinite greatness had chosen to reveal these mysteries to us without waiting for all these testimonies. Please read this testimony carefully to draw all lessons from it. Also, take the time to re-read the teachings on "*Discernment*" and "*Spiritual Warfare*", as they are a treasure trove of revelations. You will find them at www.mcreveil.org.

# 2- Beginning of the testimony

The first time I came into this world, I was born in Egypt and I was a man at that time. I had a wife and four children. I was a soldier and we had all gone into battle. We were nearly twenty thousand soldiers in our troop, and the battle was so tough that our commander died, and so did we. When we died, there was no place for us to go. In fact, if someone who does not have the Spirit of God dies, his soul will be stranded. So, our spirits hung in the air. Suddenly, there were demons called Magog that appeared in that battlefield with their tanks, loading them with blood. When they were about to go, they discovered that we were hanging in the air. They arrested all our souls and took us to the deep sea. When we got to the deep sea, they took us to the palace of the queen of the coast. They put us in a straight line, and got all of us initiated by giving us a cup of blood.

We drank that blood as a covenant of initiation. Afterwards they sent for our master plan in order to give us an assignment. In the kingdom of darkness, there are different levels and equally different ranks: *Local level, state level, federal level, national level, worldwide level.* These are the five levels in the world that many call five stars. Some people may draw it in their church, others in their homes. They do not know that it means five levels of world power and represents the kingdom of darkness. These levels exist by rank; when the

local level deals with you, they can do whatever they want with you without seeking your master plan. There are realms 333, 666, 777, 999 and above. In the 666 realm of the marine world, before they do anything on you, they must ask for your master plan.

# 3- Humans' master plan

This master plan can only be obtained from the kingdom of darkness called the 999 realm where the international demons dwell. Before anyone comes to this world, they will first get to a place called **immigration centre**. Every human being is stopped in this centre to check their master plan. If they see a white file in your hands they will collect it. And from there they will check your master plan. The master plan is what God has sent you to accomplish in this world, from your first day to the last day. It contains your life mission record. Whenever they discover you are coming to this world to do the will of God, they will manipulate and remove God's original plan for your life and replace it with counterfeit plan.

So, when you come to this world, you will do the opposite of God's will. For example, if God sent you to this earth to be born in Canada, they will make you be born in Ghana. Your guardian angel and every good thing of your life sent by God will be in Canada. When they manipulate your plan, your entire divine programmes and your blessing will be in Canada while you are in Ghana. The guardian angel of your life will not be there with you. **That is why you see people suffering to the point of wondering why God brought them into this world**. No, my friend, **the angel of darkness has changed God's plans for your life with a counterfeit plan. You have been misdirected. That is why you are facing problems.** Beloved, you need to pray earnestly. **With prayer, God can still send another angel to relocate you**.

They then looked for our plans to find out what our mission was. When our master plans were brought, they gave each of us a position and where to work. So, when it got to my turn they gathered and buckled me. For two weeks, I was in their prison. I did not know why they had locked me up. When they brought me out, I inquired why they had locked me up. They told me I did not offend them but they discovered in my master plan that God had sent me into this world to be a prophet. That is why they prepared a special assignment for me that goes against the original plan of God. They also told me that they will send me to school and that I will spend 300 years there. I was so surprised and thought *how can I spend 300 years in school*? That means I still have to die again, they laughed at me. They told me that in this place, no one dies and they showed me *some people who had been living for almost 3000 years*. Later, they sent me to study at the school in the deep sea until university.

# 4- The kingdom of darkness beneath the deep sea

The deep sea is so big and bigger than the whole world. I do not know how to describe it. The world we are in may be just a small local state in that place. That place is very big. If you see their stadium, you cannot compare it with what we have here. If you see their universities, their hospitals, they surpass ours; they are more civilized and more advanced than us. The fallen angels descended from Heaven due to their rebellion. They knew the secret behind all plants, the secret in the creation of animals. But when God wanted to create humans, He

sent His breath into man and the secret behind this breath is a mystery to them. I studied many subjects in the kingdom of darkness beneath the deep sea. But the main subject I went there for was theology.

This course on theology took me 100 years to finish. You may be surprised that in the kingdom of darkness we read the Bible. **The Bible is the greatest book.** We do not have any other book of law in the kingdom of darkness. They know that it is by this Bible that every human being will be judged. So, if you want to be great or have promotion, you may want to be a police, a lawyer, a judge, or to have higher rank in the kingdom of darkness, you must read theology in the deep sea. You must know the Word of God because it is powerful in the kingdom of darkness. The same way that the Word of God is often used in light, it is likewise used in darkness. The only difference is that, in the kingdom of darkness we only used it to contradict genuine Christians because they are ignorant and do not know the power of the word and how to use it.

I read many courses in that place beneath the deep sea, which I cannot elaborate on. Talking about education, you would only receive theories. The truly practical side of all those courses you get in school is right there in the deep sea. They may give you courses, that is, you may read books, but to do the practical and other sorts of things is not possible. For example, you may want to produce a chemical, medicine or a machine at the end of your studies, despite all your efforts, your production will not be acknowledged. But you will find people who come out with exactly what you produced, and theirs is recognised. And you will wonder why is theirs the best and not yours!

# 5- My work in California

There is a cult called **world scientific occultism.** Those called geniuses in any course are members of this world scientific occultism. It is true that there are geniuses of God but not in the way of the world. It took me 300 years to complete studies. *I was offered this course because I wanted to become chief justice in the highest court in the kingdom of darkness*. And since I worked hard, I passed all my exams and later became chief justice in the highest court of darkness. That was why I was sent to California.

**California is the head quarter of the devil in the whole world. The devil** *has 3 offices in the world: One in California, one in India, and one in Nigeria.* The Office in Nigeria was established in 1977, during the era festival called Festac 77. This festival was brought to Nigeria by one of our former presidents. You may think it was just an ordinary festival. The festival Festac 77 was programmed in order to initiate and enhance the establishment of the kingdom of darkness and demonic empowerment in Nigeria. And the office, the secretariat, is based in the centre of Obamhma market in Benin City.

When they promoted me to California as chief justice, I was to serve a 30-year term. While serving, I worked on many cases, I tried many saints. I condemned many souls, which I cannot explain in this confession. I was there doing my work perfectly until the day I went to my chamber to go through files. I came across the file of an unborn person. *How can somebody that is not born have a case? How can I judge a person who has not come to this world before?* 

I was baffled. I did not know how to handle such a case. I needed to call my registrar. I asked my registrar to give me details about the case. He was unable to do so. I then sent for the demonic lawyer that brought the case. When I questioned him, *he said it is possible for someone who is not yet born into this world to answer a case in the kingdom of darkness.* 

I responded, how? He replied that they have astrologers, I mean star browsers. Before any man is born into this world, *his star will be on the sky for about* **400 years ahead.** His star will be there waiting for him, programming him for his generation to come. So, there are some fallen angels called star browsers. These are demonic agents we call astrologers of darkness. They read stars almost 400 years to come. So when the demonic star browsers were on their mission, they came across a strange star that was wrapped in a pillar of fire. Moreover, a similar star wrapped in a pillar of fire had been witnessed previously - **the star of Moses**. Before Moses was born, the kingdom of darkness noticed that somebody strange was coming; that was the reason why they waged war against Moses. They did not want him to succeed in his mission to the extent of killing every newborn male in Egypt.

When they discovered this star again, they marked the personality. Therefore, they wanted to build a programme against his life, and they brought the case to me. Though the unborn child did not offend them, they wanted to reprogram his life as a means to create *loopholes that would work against God*. They brought the case to my office to find out how they can reprogram the unborn personality. I asked the lawyer how to see the person to be tried. He said it is possible, they would have to take permission from Heaven for that. I said I do not believe that. He said that as the devil asked and got permission from God to touch all that Job had, they could also request the same. I thought it was a joke, and I reluctantly gave them an appointed date I will set up a judgment for him. I did not know the kind of judgment I would pronounce to the unknown personality. The lawyer told me that if I did not handle this case, they would report me. This threat forced me to go back to my library to do more research. So, the judgment I set was to set up a marriage for him.

The baby that appeared before me was a full-grown man, yet unborn. **So, I arranged a demon reincarnate for him as a wife and I got them wedded.** In fact, to my outermost surprise, while they were reading his data to me, exactly the name that the baby will bear on earth was in his master plan including the name of his parents and where he will be born. I mean almost 400 years before the baby was to be born. Even his parents were not yet born. So, I had to reprogram the master plan of God for his life and also set up a demon reincarnate as his wife.

Beloved, if you discover that you have a spiritual wife or husband, quickly seek your deliverance and pray, because **many are initiated or are married to demons before they are being born**. Many people are engaged before they are born. So, seek your deliverance. After pronouncing this case, I judged several other cases. I finished my 30 years term in that office. After that, I was promoted to another kingdom of darkness called anti-god kingdom. There are three kingdoms of darkness controlling this world: anti-god kingdom, anti-christ kingdom and satanic kingdom.

# 6- The anti-God kingdom

In their kingdom, they told me that they are not concerned with attacking people or killing them anyhow. Nor do they stop people from prospering or cause them to be barren. In sum, they are not concerned with afflicting people on earth with sicknesses; that is the mission of the local and inferior kingdoms than theirs. The only assignment they have in their own kingdom is to **make man to serve God under the anger of God**. **Their major work is to lead man to Hell fire**. Their level is the highest level in the kingdom of darkness, which is to stand against man from making Heaven. They told me that their motto and power is in the word of God.

They told me that their motto is in Deuteronomy 5:7-9 "You shall have no other gods before me. <sup>8</sup>You shall not make for yourself an idol in the form of anything in heaven above or on the earth beneath or in the waters below. <sup>9</sup>You shall not bow down to them or worship them; for I, the Lord your God, am a jealous God, punishing the children for the sin of the fathers to the third and fourth generation of those who hate me."

These things did not mean anything or sounded strange to me since I had read this in school when I was in the deep sea. I asked them how the quotation could empower them. In response, they told me that they were fallen angels; they lived with God for thousands of years before committing the sin, which resulted in their being cast to this world. **They know that God will never accept anybody that worships another god**. And if that person dies, they are very sure that the person will never see the favour of God. This is the reason they cause people to worship God under the anger of God. This is why they take the idea of idol worship very seriously. Whenever God says something, He does not reverse it. So it is only when a man repents that he withholds the destruction process. They told me that they neither stop man from going to church nor hinder him from worshipping God. They use cunning and not power to programme people's lives so that they worship God under His anger. This is the reason they have established many churches today, most of which teach and follow what is not written in the Bible.

Talking about how they use some religions and churches to fulfil their mission, they told me that they would cause people who want to worship God to worship idols by following those churches that do not follow the Bible strictly. It follows that no matter their righteousness and goodness, God will never accept them. As soon as they die, this quotation will be opened against them by demons at the gate of Heaven. They told me that it is not only on this earth that demons fight against people. When people die, demons stand at the gate of Heaven to quote against them the things they missed on earth. This is what they do against Christians who thought they were holy while on earth.

# 7- Introduction of idol worship in the Church

They revealed to me how they introduced idol worship in the church. After the death of Christ, the apostles went about working. They went from one place to the other, preaching the Gospel, causing revival and healing. Anywhere they

went, there was healing, power demonstration, and deliverance. People started coming to Christ and following the apostles. So, they (the anti-god kingdom) said, "How are we going to stop these people?" They tried stopping them by killing them. But, the more they killed them, the more they increased in number. **The devil managed to introduce idolatry in the Church through the worship of the queen of Heaven they called Mary. The genuine name of that idol is Venus**. The demons say by this that they have the power to cause people to worship God under the anger of God. When people get to the Gate of Heaven after they die in such conditions, demons use this quotation to make their entry to Heaven impossible.

As far as my mission with them was concerned, they told me that they would like to use me to establish shrines for idol worship. I was then trained for this mission. **So, I began coming into this world through child bearing**. Somebody will give birth to me - I will grow up and after some years, I will die. I did not die prematurely. Sometimes I would die at the age of 70 or 80. I would grow up to adulthood, marry, and have children. But my main purpose in any given country was to live with them, know what they liked, and know how to arrange gods for them. And this is how we established our idols.

If we wanted to establish an idol, we would live among the people so that we know their sicknesses and their weak points. If we wanted to force a state or city to worship idols, we would cause a sickness among them so that they either experienced continued deaths or we would send the spirit of Magog to another place to come and fight them and start killing them. And when they see people dying, they will start going all around, consulting oracles. It is during these consultations that they would be directed to a specific person who can help them solve their problem. They would be directed to me. In my turn, I would tell them to establish an idol and begin worshipping it; and if they did, their problems were over, and they would turn to idol worship. I was born in many countries.

You might want to argue with me on the basis that man has been mandated to die once. True, the Bible does not lie. It is true that man has been mandated to die once. But let me tell you that this is so only with true Children of God. True Children of God have the Holy Spirit, and when they die, the angels called Escort Angels will welcome their souls, protect them, and take them to a place where their souls will rest. But, those who do not live a holy live, whether you believe me or not, there are some demons that wait for them to die. These demons would hijack their souls and take them to their kingdom. Do you know that many of us do not reach our ages before we die? The only thing that will make someone go to the land of the dead is when they die at the appropriate age. But if you die before your age, you will not go there. You will go to the kingdom of demons and start serving them.

In some traditions, when some people die, their faces, hands and/or legs are scarified before they are buried. If it happens that they are born a second time, they come back with the same scars on their body, exactly where the marks were made. Some of them have acute memories after their rebirth that they recognise the clothes and shoes they used before dying.

#### 8- How do we penetrate into the body of human beings?

If we want to come to this world, we will first come in spirit. We do not have flesh. We will mark any woman or man that has the kind of face and complexion we like and need. But if the person is still single, we will quickly programme their marriage since we want to use their body. Even if that person were holy, we will release sexual urge upon her that will make her to go and fornicate and get pregnant. And if such a woman dares abort it, she will die. During the sexual act, a spirit will be monitoring the sperm that will be released. And during the temperature and warming, just at the point that the sperm cell is about to become flesh, the spirit will enter. The flesh will mix-up with the spirit and it will turn into a baby, and everybody will rejoice that a new baby has been born.

That is why I give this advice: any couple that wants to meet together or have sexual intercourse, whether they want a baby or not, they should cover themselves with the blood of Jesus Christ and sanctify the bed with the power of the Holy Ghost. *This would keep you from producing demons into this world.* This explains why there are children *that do not resemble the father and mother in many Christian homes*. These children act so strange and behave differently from the whole family. This is because the parents did not know that there were some unseen spirit programming against their intercourse when they were meeting together. My prayer is that every one of you that has been in this kind of condition or has such a person in their family, that the Lord that touched and changed my life will also touch and change their lives. *And if the ones born into their family are demon re-incarnate, may the Lord should uproot and remove them from that family in the mighty name of Jesus Christ.* 

# 9- Demons' annual meetings

I started going from one country to another to establish demonic temples. I worked for this kingdom for many years. I prospered anywhere I was born. I was good at carrying out any assignments and respecting contracts. I constantly had promotion everywhere until I got to the highest level, and became one of the executive members in the kingdom of darkness. As executive members, we held meetings every year where we made annual budgets. Budgeting always comes up around September and October.

We meet to give reports, and each person represents a continent. During one of those annual meetings, someone may stand up and say, "Ah, in my own continent, of the 2.000.000 people that died this year, we afflicted 700 with sickness; 300 people backslide; and about 400 people were given fibroid; ..." People are given additional powers, promotion, and demons according to how they work. They may decide to give them 20,000 demons to work along with them so as to facilitate and make their work more effective. **Others would get powers, snake, scorpion and many weapons and arrows** so that their work can be faster, and they will also give a report of those initiated in a year.

Let me tell you something; *if a local government has 10 witches, whether you believe it or not, those 10 witches will be multiplied into 100 within a year*. The kingdom of darkness always initiates, and multiplication is always

their mission. It is only in the Christendom where people do not care about multiplication. This is the greatest assignment in the kingdom of darkness, because the devil always reminds us every year that the rapture will soon take place. He said he did not want Jesus Christ to have any candidate. They do not want anyone to be raptured.

# 10- How many people make heaven every year?

In the old days, before somebody was initiated, they had to bring certain things to make a covenant. But nowadays, whether you like it or not, it is possible to be initiated either in a dream or in school. It is only by the grace of God that you can be freed. They also initiate people in the market. They have to give report on the number of people they initiate, and this allows them to be promoted. We started giving our report, one by one. Those that report last are demons called *"international demons"*. These are the people who normally stay between the entrance gate to Heaven, and who know how many people enter Heaven in a year. It is one of them who is called in Daniel the ruler of the kingdom of Persia. They are the people who hindered the prayer of Daniel. These demons have the power to hijack man or his life after death.

They are the people that welcome man while he is coming to this world and also when he is leaving this world. They know the number of people that make Heaven in a year and the number of people that go to Hell in a year. So, that day they all stood up with sad faces. We all wondered why these people were not happy, because they are always cheerful; they always put on great air of superiority whenever they want to talk. They started talking, saying, "This year, about 15 souls made it to Heaven." We were so surprised, because it had not happened like that ever since I joined them. Since I joined them, it was usual for them to say, "Heee, this year about 2-3 souls made it to Heaven." And sometimes no single soul will make it.

Do you know that in the whole universe, more than 100 million people die every year and 100 million go to Hell every year? And there is no one who enters Heaven. However, the report that year was very different. And everywhere was scattered and everybody was angry. **The devil himself cried, roaring like a** *lion with anger, scattered everything, released fire, injured and burnt many people.* He was shouting, *why, do you want to destroy my kingdom, do you want to destroy me? How could you allow 15 people to make Heaven in a year, 15 people making Heaven in a year is very dangerous for the kingdom of darkness, because as soon as all the seats God has reserved are occupied, the rapture will take place. That is why the rapture has been delayed. If the number is complete, our time will be over.* He was seriously annoyed, and summoned the astrologers to go and browse through the internet.

Talking about the internet, it existed long before you people on earth discovered it. **So, astrologers were sent to search out the cause of the problem.** They discovered in their research that this barrier got broken in the land of Africa, in Nigeria. The devil now commanded them to go and check what caused the problem. But the report made me afraid; they came back with a report of a man against whom I passed a judgment in the kingdom of darkness when I was in

California. That man was the founder of the Christ Apostolic Church. If you would remember, I told you of an unborn man that, in judgment, I programmed a reincarnate demon as human being that he would get married to. I made him to marry that demon as a wife. The woman that man married did not repent until she died. The point here is not if she wanted to repent or not. **God would not accept her even if she repented simply because she was a demon reincarnate.** If you know about that church's story, you will know that I am not lying. We programmed so many things about that church, but by the grace of God that pastor overcame the power of that woman. Even though that woman tormented him, he made Heaven.

They said he was the one who had broken the barrier, increasing the number of people that made Heaven. And argument broke out on how a single man can break such a barrier. Was he so strong? Or was it the message that was so powerful or was it the anointing? The astrologers then told us that it was neither the message nor the anointing. It was because **he gave instructions in the church that all the members should not wear earrings and jewelleries.** We were at this point told how that could affect the kingdom of Heaven. I raised my hand to confirm that I came across something like that when I visited the international demons at the gate of Heaven.

There was a day I was going to Hell to mark a record by targeting somebody we wanted to kill. At our level, we do not kill anyone. We would only go to a person's record in Hell. Every human being's name is in Hell fire. Two spirit beings always appear on the day of a person's naming ceremony. The first spirit being is a demon from Hell fire. The second is an angel from Heaven. If the name, which the baby bears, is attached to any name of any idol, the angel that came from Heaven will disappear. Let me tell you something, *the name of an idol can never enter into the book of life. Forget about your position in the Christendom, you may be a bishop, a reverend, or whosoever you think you are; you may be holy on earth; your work may even be acceptable; but if your name has to do with an idol, it will not be recorded in the book of life.* Bake sure your name has to do with God if truly you want to make Heaven. But if your name has a connection with idols, it means you belong to the lineage of idols. So, note that and change your name.

If we want to attack people, if we want to kill them in the kingdom of darkness, we go through that name. That second demon that comes from Hell fire can write everybody's name. Whatever your name is, he will write it down. He will go and record it in their register room in Hell fire. So, if you are alive, if you are committing sin, the blood of Jesus Christ will not be on your name. But if you are in Christ, and are holy, the blood of Jesus Christ will cover your name. When the demon goes there to check, your name will be blank. But the blood will be wiped away and your name will appear the moment you backslide and go back to sin.

If we go there and the name appears, we will strike that person to death. We will not allow him to repent before we kill him. But when we get there and see that the blood still covers a name, no matter how great our programme against that person is, we will not kill that person at that moment, until we see him in the act of sin. It is at that point that we can kill him or else if we kill him without

wiping away the blood of Jesus Christ, he will go to Heaven and we will lose the candidate. And the kingdom of darkness will punish us for losing that candidate.

# **11-** Danger of wearing jewelleries

In our kingdom, killing is not our target, but destruction to Hell fire is. We set numerous traps in this world to make sure no one makes Heaven. We did not believe that people could still make Heaven because we polluted everything on earth. And whenever someone made Heaven, it pained us so much, and we wondered how they had managed despite everything we had done to prevent them from making Heaven. On my way to Hell one day to check a name, I decided to branch to the international demons to greet them. As I was exchanging word with them, we noticed the arrival of a woman who had feared God on earth. She was a pastor's wife and she won many souls for the Lord. But our agents on earth succeeded in deceiving her. This woman was wearing little earrings and had believed that the fact that her earrings were tiny is not a sin. This woman got to the gate of Heaven, and to her uttermost surprise, she was told she could not enter Heaven with her earrings.

Before she finished saying, "I am sorry, I did not know", before she finished tendering her explanation, a force came from nowhere, and just turned her face from the direction of the gate of Heaven to the direction of Hell fire. A strange wind took this woman and rolled her seriously and she speedily ran to Hell. Do not think you will walk majestically to Hell fire or that somebody will throw you there. You will run with your legs, with speed. Another sad side of this story is that the angels took time to show to that woman the crown and all the rewards that were stored in Heaven for her. Because of the work that she had done on earth for the Lord, she had a beautiful crown in Heaven, a very glorious crown, filled with stars all over, and shining with more than 500 stars, and many other rewards, including a beautiful mansion. When I asked the international demons why the woman's crown was so glorious, they said, this was the crown for a soul winner ... and that the stars I saw on the crown were the number of souls that the woman won for God.

They also told me that there is no crown for a bishop or pastor in Heaven. Any title we give to ourselves on earth has no reward in Heaven, it is only the work we do for God that gets rewarded. The woman was sure of her life; she believed she lived a holy life. She won many souls for the Lord, she had glorious crown waiting for her in Heaven, yet she could not enter. When the angel told her at the gate that she could not enter, she started arguing, "No, I must enter. Jesus even appeared to me before I died, I'm holy", but the demons interrupted her and said, "Woman you cannot enter Heaven with your earrings". This woman started shouting the name of Jesus. She was shouting Jesussssssss. Brethren, it is when you are still alive that you can shout the name of Jesus for salvation. So, accept the Bible as it is.

This woman went to Hell fire because of ignorance. She did not believe that God hated earrings, no matter how small they could be. It is easier for a man to make Heaven than a woman. **Because of worldly attachments, women are very scarce in Heaven**. I remember when Jesus Christ took me to Heaven when He met me. When he took me to the banquet hall, I discovered that men

outnumbered women. In the Church on earth, women are numerous but in Heaven women are very scarce, because of what satan has programmed for them.

# **12-** What does the Bible say about jewellery?

**Genesis 35:1-5** "Then God said to Jacob, go up to Bethel and settle there, and build an altar there to God, who appeared to you when you were fleeing from your brother Esau. <sup>2</sup>So Jacob said to his household and to all who were with him, **get rid of the foreign gods** you have with you, and purify yourselves and change your clothes. <sup>3</sup>Then come, let us go up to Bethel, where I will build an altar to God, who answered me in the day of my distress and who has been with me wherever I have gone. <sup>4</sup>So they gave Jacob all the foreign gods they had and **the rings in their ears**, and Jacob buried them under the oak at Shechem. <sup>5</sup>Then they set out, and the terror of God fell on the towns all around them so that no one pursued them."

**Exodus 33:1-6** "Then the Lord said to Moses, leave this place, you and the people you brought up out of Egypt, and go up to the land I promised on oath to Abraham, Isaac and Jacob, saying, I will give it to your descendants.' <sup>2</sup>I will send an angel before you and drive out the Canaanites, Amorites, Hittites, Perizzites, Hivites and Jebusites. <sup>3</sup>Go up to the land flowing with milk and honey. But I will not go with you, because you are a stiff-necked people and I might destroy you on the way. <sup>4</sup>When the people heard these distressing words, they began to mourn and no one put on any ornaments. <sup>5</sup>For the Lord had said to Moses, tell the Israelites, you are a stiff-necked people. If I were to go with you even for a moment, I might destroy you. Now take off your ornaments and I will decide what to do with you. <sup>6</sup>So the Israelites stripped off their ornaments at Mount Horeb." These passages show us that God's position in relation to ornaments is clear.

In 1Corinthians 3:16-17 the Bible says that our body is the temple of God. "Do you not know that you yourselves are God's temple and that God's Spirit lives in you? <sup>17</sup>If anyone destroys God's temple, God will destroy him; for God's temple is sacred, and you are that temple." Therefore, nothing that attracts the wrath of God must remain in our body or on your body. **Do not use any jewellery on your body, which is the Temple of God**.

Some people will say, "God does not have anything to do with our body, but only with our soul or heart." ... It is a lie!!! God has something to do with your body, spirit, heart, and soul. Your body is the temple of the Lord. Iniquities must not dwell there. You must be careful; your body belongs to God. You cannot use it the way you like. You must please God with your body. Let us read Romans 12:1 "Therefore, I urge you, brothers, in view of God's mercy, to offer your bodies as living sacrifices, holy and pleasing to God - this is your spiritual act of worship."

God talks about your body here, and not about your heart or soul. If God wants to talk about heart, He will talk about heart, and if He wants to talk about body, He will talk about body. Do not let any preacher of satan deceive you. Do not allow any agent of Hell to tell you that God is only concerned with soul, heart and not with body. Your body, soul, and heart are for God. If you Christians truly want to make Heaven, you should get rid of all these things. **The reason why we are using them today in the church and we are not dying, and fire does not fall to consume us, is because God is no longer in our midst**. For that reason, thunder might not kill you in the church today; fire might not burn you; but do not forget that a day comes when you will die and face the anger of God. Please take this message very seriously.

# 13- The plan to send me to Nigeria

In our meeting that day, we realised that our dresses and ornament have been destroying many souls and we were very happy. We specifically used this aim and power in a mighty way in our kingdom. So, as we rounded off the meeting, we concluded that we must deal with that pastor who broke the barrier that made people to make Heaven and with his ministry. We then sent many agents to Nigeria to attack him. But glory be to God! As many as were sent to attack this pastor, so were they hit. He just stood up one day in the church and said "*I* release the fire of God, the Angel of God, to arrest the spirit of darkness in this place" and they were arrested, and started confessing. They confessed and repented. It is only re-incarnate demons that cannot repent. But the genuine human being who has been possessed can repent, and if they pray for them, they will be delivered.

The devil started losing many candidates. That is why another meeting was held in order to look for superior people who could do the job very well. That was how they found me some years later. They said I should be the one that should go to Nigeria to eradicate that dangerous doctrine which that man had established. Please do not argue with your eternity. **Sacrifice whatever can** *hinder you from making Heaven. If it is your beauty, sacrifice it. Whatever you have here, you cannot compare it with eternity. Anything at all, that the kingdom of Heaven does not like in you, sacrifice it, in order to make Heaven.* 

# 14- There must be a difference between Deborah and Delilah

In our meeting, we were assigned to come and wage war against Africa because of that man of God. My assignment to Nigeria was to pollute the Christendom. That means **bringing the world into the church and taking the church back to the world; everything going on outside in the world will be taken into the church, and people will not know the difference**. **My assignment was to blindfold people to the extent that they would not know the difference between Deborah and Delilah**. There must be a difference between the two. You must recognize Deborah when she appears and Delilah must also be recognized when she appears. In the church today, you no longer know the difference between a prostitute and a child of God, they both dress the same way. No, you cannot make Heaven with this; there must be a difference between darkness and light. What is the friendship between darkness and light?

You must be very careful. Do not allow the devil to deceive you. Let us read from **2Corinthians 6:14-18**, "Do not be unequally yoked together with unbelievers. For what fellowship has righteousness with lawlessness? And what communion has light with darkness? <sup>15</sup>And what accord has Christ with Belial? Or what part

has a believer with an unbeliever? <sup>16</sup>And what agreement has the temple of God with idols? For you are the temple of the living God. As God has said: "I will dwell in them and walk among them. I will be their God, and they shall be My people." <sup>17</sup>Therefore "Come out from among them and be separate, says the Lord. Do not touch what is unclean, and I will receive you." <sup>18</sup>"I will be a Father to you, and you shall be My sons and daughters, says the Lord Almighty." That means you must not have any thing in common with them. If your dressing becomes common with theirs, if the way you talk is common with theirs, it means you are part of them.

It follows that, your dress must be different from the world; your attitude too must be different. If nothing is making you different from the people of the world, that means you are still in the world. You are not in Christ. So, if the first brethren's attitude, speech and their way of life earned them the name Christians, that means there is a way real Christians behave; the way true Christians do things make them to be different. **You must be different among the multitude. If you do not obey the Bible, the language that will come at last will be the language of death.** And if you do not obey the Word of God and die in sin, then you will die forever. Do not allow this testimony to condemn you after death.

As I was saying, my assignment in Nigeria was to come and pollute the Christendom. They told me that I must use their dresses to drive away the presence of God from the church. Note that the existence of certain things in the church would stop God's presence from appearing. You may argue with me that in your church, there are miracles, people speak in tongues, the voice of God is heard... No Problem. There are thousands of gods, especially if you say, you hear voice, you see vision? Do you think all visions come from God? Do you think all things you hear are from God? Does not the Bible say that even demons disguise themselves as angels of God? **Beware of that god that is speaking to you in sin**.

You are committing sin, you are dressing like Jezebel, you are dressing like demonic people, and you say God is speaking to you. I have dwelt with them, have reigned with them for many years. I know how they operate. It is not possible that a woman can dress like Jezebel and the Spirit of the Almighty God still dwells in her, it is a lie. You may argue with me, but you will never argue after death. Be careful, if you think I am lying and you discover after death that I was saying the truth, will you have another chance to come back to life? That is why you must think twice before you reject this message.

Before I went to Africa for my assignment, I needed to consult the superior ones, which had been there before me, those that understand the things that go on in the kingdom of darkness. I needed to consult the queen of the coast. I consulted many kingdoms for their advice so that they could guide me, so that I would not make mistakes. Assignments in Africa are very difficult assignments. Many had failed. I was then promised that should I succeed, I would be promoted to a higher position. As I went to them for advice, they gave me keys on how I could do it. But in the kingdom of darkness, they said I should go and prepare my proposal before they would approve my assignment. The proposal must contain

a biblical quotation, which will be used against anybody that will fall under your trap. My proposal rested on the quotation of Romans 1:26 "Because of this, God gave them over to shameful lusts. Even their women exchanged natural relations for unnatural ones." You may say, "What is the meaning of this?"

It means **women exchange what is natural. Anything called natural is natural**; it is either sexual or a part of your body. It says, "**Women exchange natural for unnatural**" and God released His Judgment upon them in verse 32 "Although they know God's righteous decree that those who do such things deserve death, they not only continue to do these very things but also approve of those who practice them." Note that before this last verse, so many sins are mentioned. At this point, I am only interested in the one I pointed out in my own proposal. It says, anybody that does this especially "**anybody that changes natural for unnatural, whether sexual or dresses, so far as you change anything God has given you to unnatural, the Bible says you deserve death.**"

And it also says, they "not only do the same, but have pleasure in them that do them." This portion is talking about those that say they are born again, they do not do it; but they have a hairdressing saloon. If anybody brings wigs or hair relaxer, they will do it for them. If you say you are not doing it and you are doing it for others, you will be condemned. That is why you must separate yourself from them. So, this is the quotation I wrote in my proposal and some other quotations like that, and they accepted it from me and thus gave me the contract. I began establishing fake churches when I was about starting my work in polluting the Christendom. Without the counterfeit, one cannot appreciate the original. Before having counterfeit churches we must first have counterfeit ministers.

## **15-** Power of fake ministers

Let me reveal something about the kingdom of darkness to you ministers of God reading this. You know that some so-called Christians and so-called servants of God are evil, and sometimes you gather to pray against them, striking them to death and asking God to crush them. Yes, God can answer that prayer, but not the way you expect it. Let me tell you the truth: the power used for miracles in the kingdom of darkness does not originate from them. *It is the power given to genuine ministers of God from Heaven that they collect by sexual intercourse*, which they keep in their storehouse. It is the same they use to ordain their fake ministers. It explains why you see them working the way Children of God are working, doing miracles like Jesus. *That is why whenever you pray against them they are not affected; they are actually using the same power of God against the work of God*.

We have women agents who, when a minister of God is powerful, when the anointing of God is highly filled up in him, we send them against those ministers. *They pretend to be workers in the Church or a sponsor of the Church. They will get closer to the pastor. They will be too good and humble to the pastor. The pastor will have special interest in them because they are good. In addition, they are ready to give whatever they have to the ministry. This would bring them closer to the minister. We may use this* 

# opportunity to seduce this pastor. And if this pastor mistakenly fall in love with this agent and have sexual intercourse with them, we get him!

We put a snake in the private part of those women. If it happens that the pastor has sexual intercourse with them, it does not matter whether or not they use condom, the real sperm goes straight into the body of that woman and the snake in the private part will open its mouth and swallow the sperm. In the night, the snake would move out and would go to the lab in the marine world and vomit the sperm there. The sperm would be scanned as a means to know the level of the glory and the anointing. To all men reading this, do you know that your glory, riches and everything you have on earth is in your sperm? That is why if you mess around anyhow, it is your glory you are messing around with. Both anointing and glory are all stored in the sperm. That is why, if you fornicate too much before getting married, you may not give birth to good children; all the glorious things in your sperm have been given out to useless women. When you fornicate, you can sell off your life and glory.

So, we take ministers' anointing from their sperms. We store it to prepare our fake ministers with. When we prepared our fake ministers, we endowed them with ruse. They are cunning. Let me tell you something. **There is what we call micro-chip implant. These fake ministers of God are richer than you are in the word of God. This is because the entire computer has been implanted into their brains by the micro-soft. We have installed all the quotations and everything in the Bible into their brains.** You see them quoting many biblical passages and also interpret them. Some speak like machines, without swallowing saliva. They do this to the point of marvelling genuine men of God. Be careful; go back to your Bible. Forget about how good they are. God is there in your Bible. Beware, do not follow them.

They may say seven true words of God and they will add two lies into it. The seven truths they say will make you to admit the two lies and you will be deceived. So, whenever you listen to their teachings, go back to the Bible. Anything you listen, which does not go along with the faith you have in the Bible, be careful! *I had more than two thousands ministers I had ordained from the marine kingdom and they have established churches in this world and they are general overseers today. They are operating and they are doing miracles today, and nobody can stop them except God.* I have gone myself to some of them in order to do restitution but they called police to arrest me. They said I am a liar and mad. I have tried to rescue them but they refused because they believed it is God who called them.

# 16- Calling of fake ministers

This is how I called them in the dream; I will go to them and talk to them like God and say, if the name is Samuel, I will say, "Samuel, hear the voice of god, I am god almighty, the creator of heaven and earth. I want to send you with a message. Carry your cross and follow me. I want to send you to the world, to deliver my people from the power of darkness, to stop them from worshipping idols, to save their souls. I will give you anointing and power for healing, breakthrough, blessing, and to comfort my people and I will honour you, I will bless you. I will give you power to go throughout the world and I will be with you. I am your god almighty."

And when that person wakes up, will he not think that it were God? He will believe that it is God who is talking to him because according to the Bible, that is how God called His people. We had been trained to imitate God and His angels. If we do not deceive them, how will they follow us? So, **that is how I called many people and all the signs that follow genuine call, will also follow that person**. If they refuse, we can afflict them with problems. They can be sacked at their jobsite, and their businesses may collapse. All the system that God uses is the same system we use in calling fake ministers.

If then you hear a call, or if you believe to have heard a call, the first thing to do is not to go to a bible college, but to pray. Keep in mind once and for all that the bible college does not train a true servant of God; it is God who trains His true servants. Pray for several months, and spend a lot of time in your Bible, so that you will not regret it. Find out if it is the true God who called you.

As I already told you, the target and mission of my calling was to eradicate holiness in the Church. We believed that if holiness continued in the church, if they remained in the true word of God and if we did not deceive them and give them the counterfeit, they would continue to make Heaven. That was the reason why we started establishing fake churches by calling fake ministers. Apart from establishing fake churches, we also had other preparations and areas in which we worked. For example, our preparations in gospel musicians, the way we deceived the choirs, our works in baptism and holy communion, and how we worked among the workers in the church.

When I started my assignment, we first ordained our fake ministers with water, sperm, and stars we collected from the anointed men of God. Whenever we sent our fake ministers to come and establish their own church, they did not start in a local way, they started a church in a big way. Sometimes, they might also start in rough and terrible way but it all depended on the level of the demon that used them. But if the level of demon that uses them is from local level, they can start with poverty. I am not saying that anybody that starts the work of God in poverty is from God. There is no system that the devil cannot use; but during my assignment, we normally established our fake ministers in better ways and gave them good locations. These fake ministers are trained and prepared for their mission. They are taught the type of sermon they will be preaching. This sermon was not for salvation.

We only taught them to teach about God's love, God's greatness, God's goodness, and to regard God as the almighty and miracle maker, who can bless people and do wondrous things. We equally taught them to make their congregation to see God as a friend but not make them to remember or allow them to see God as someone who is seriously annoyed with this world of sin. That they should not bring their mind to the destruction that is coming upon this world. When they preach, they tell people not to commit sin, but they do not put emphasis on those common sins that are committed every day. They always base their preaching on miracles, healing, success, breakthrough, power, and faith. They do not preach on holiness, righteousness and the fear of God. This is how we taught our fake ministers on how to eradicate the fear of God from people's hearts.

Moreover, any topic or sermon they give, they always round it up with blessing and miracle. Please listen to me, "If you see any pastor preaching like that, know that he is one of the agents of darkness. He is either a registered agent or ignorant agent." What I mean by ignorant agent is that, some people are working for the devil and yet they do not know they are working for the devil while thinking they are working for God. You might not behold them going to the shrine or the world of darkness to obtain diabolical powers or make any covenant, but ignorantly they are working for the devil because their sermon and system is the same as the system of darkness. Loving God is an act of obeying His commandment. It is not by spending or giving money alone. Satanic ministers only preach about what pleases them. Their preaching is only based on self-profit.

# 17- Blessing and breakthrough: satan agents' messages

We trained fake ministers to preach about something around salvation, but while deceiving people on the language of salvation. They will teach their congregation that if they come to church, they should confess the name of Jesus Christ and accept Him as their Lord and personal Saviour. They also tell their members to come regularly to church, pay their tithes and offerings, donate in the church. They will also tell them incidentally that it is not good to fornicate and tell lies, but they will never place emphasis on sins. The reason why the church is established is to remind the faithful of those sins everyday. We come to church everyday for the pastors to preach against that sin that will hinder us from making Heaven. It is when something is repeated in the ears of human beings that they remember. But what we hear everyday in our churches today is blessing and breakthrough. These messages are from satan.

If truly it was God Almighty who called you and you later diverted and started preaching the way other fake preachers do, He would reject and replace you. True servants of God should let their faithful know what is coming upon them if they refuse to live a holy life. The church is not an entertainment hall. Why should your members be clapping for you whenever you are preaching? If your members continue clapping for you everyday, that means you are out of the way. You must preach and chastise them with the word of genuine salvation. When Jesus Christ was preaching, people gnashed their teeth and went away. They did not applaud. **John 6:60-67** " ... <sup>66</sup>From this time many of His disciples turned back and no longer followed Him. <sup>67</sup>You do not want to leave too, do you? Jesus asked the Twelve."

You refuse to preach the truth because you are afraid to lose members. You do not care if they miss Heaven. God is losing many souls every day while you keep gaining more souls in your church. Your church has become full while Heaven is reducing. What an unfortunate scenario. Dear friend, God is disappointed in you because you have abandoned your service. If you were working for God, you would be caring about the salvation of souls, and not crowd. God only cares about salvation. These are ways to identify and differentiate between fake ministers and genuine ministers of God.

# Sometimes, people wonder why big miracles are rare in those holy and righteous Churches. Miracles are rare there because the demons

accusers of the brethren are accusing them greatly. But in those fakes and counterfeit churches you will witness mighty miracles, because nobody is accusing them. If you see any church in which sins abound, where women dress like Jezebel and in such a situation God does not warn them about that sin, He does not correct their mistakes, but instead He keeps blessing them, know that that church is of satan. God can in no way be behind these miracles. **The purpose of God for the Church is not miracles, but salvation**. Miracle is just a way to build our faith.

All that people believe in today in the church is just miracle. What is the power behind the miracles you claim to receive? You better be careful about the power behind the miracles you receive or else you will regret after receiving them. Whatever satan gives you, you must pay for it either now or in eternity. Do not be a fool. Satan is cunning, but only the Holy Spirit can empower you to be wiser than satan.

# **18- Satanic women clothing**

I specifically devoted my time to model (clothing). In those counterfeit churches, we permitted women to dress anyhow because we wanted them to make use of the clothing material we produced from our demonic kingdoms. In counterfeit churches, they do not care about the dress style of women because they are permitted to dress anyhow without minding what the word of God says. 1Corinthians 11:6 "*If a woman does not cover her head, she should have her hair cut off; and if it is a disgrace for a woman to have her hair cut or shaved off, she should cover her head.*" The Bible emphasizes the importance and how godly women ought to present themselves before God. 1Corinthians 11:13 "*Judge for yourselves: Is it proper for a woman to pray to God with her head uncovered?*" But, the counterfeit churches tend to prove otherwise by justifying themselves with verse 15 which says that "*if a woman has long hair, it is her glory? For long hair is given to her as a covering.*" This scripture portrays that long hair is a woman's glory and beauty and should be covered with scarf while praying to God.

African women do not have long hair but due to clamour for beauty, they have decided to possess artificial long hair, therefore contradicting against the perfect will of God. Today they have what is called attachment, wig and hair perm. Even in the church, they will wear all this artificial attires, and they will be praising and worshipping God. Note that your church doctrine may change, but the Bible cannot change because it is infallible. Your church and self-system of worship and service to God may change, but the Bible cannot be altered.

Whether you believe me or not, that was how we used to train our demon ministers in the kingdom of darkness. These are the key points we enforced and gave our pastors to deceive the world. Women are used by the devil as a powerful weapon of darkness to destroy churches. These are the various strategies and systems we used in our counterfeit churches to divert the attention of genuine churches of God. Even with all their seriousness in the service of God, there would not be any miracle; while those that dress like Jezebel will be receiving multiples miracles. *This action will tend to propel confusion among the true worshippers. They will be confused and would not know what to believe and which church is counterfeit or genuine.* 

This is what is happening today in churches. Most people end up doubting that the godly ways of dressing is better, because those who dress godly are suffering while those that the word of God condemns are receiving so-called miracles everyday. This has caused many believers to backslide. That was how we marked out our strategies. I am the architect of that mission. I was the person that executed the assignment during my era in the kingdom of darkness.

If you are under this perpetual bondage, please lose yourself before you die. Your blood is no longer on my head because I am free by the grace of God. If you are still under the deceitfulness of clothing, your blood cannot be required from me; because I am confessing the truth to you and you ought to repent now and ask God for His mercy and forgiveness. That was how I introduced model and started my operation in modelling and worldly clothing in churches. I mapped out my assignment outlines through my proposal I mentioned above and which I submitted to the queen of the coast. I explained to her that I wanted to give Africans an artificial beauty, and she took me to the laboratory where I wanted to start my assignment in hair beauty and that was how they gave me an idea to introduce Stretching Cool.

## **19- Satanic women hair**

In Africa, we have coil hair; so stretching cool would now turn it to straight hair. Therefore, from coil hair to straight hair, it is no longer natural; it is now artificial. When I introduced it to the world many people liked it and they used it, but later they started complaining that their hair was cutting and they no longer have long hair. This also prompted me to go back to the queen of the coast and she assured me that they will give me another idea. Later on, *I was taken to the laboratory and relaxer was introduced*. While in demonic laboratory, they produced relaxer for me and I was assured that if they used it on their coiled hair, it will change from coil to long or straight hair and it would not be natural anymore. Inasmuch as it is not natural, if they die with it without repentance, they will be condemned. When they told me all these things, they clapped for me and we all rejoiced and were jubilant. That was how we came to the world and started producing relaxers.

However, the idea of relaxers was initiated by the queen of the coast. She was the person who gave me the idea and that was how we started producing it. But when some people came up with complains that their hair were not long or straight enough, I went back to the queen of the coast and she told me that the only way she could assist me was to send me to another demon called Medusa, that is specifically in the kingdom of beauty. She told me that Medusa was a beautiful woman who was cursed by her mistress. Moreover, she was the most beautiful woman in the world, but she was cursed and later turned into a beast. She requested that I should go to her temple, that she will assist me. When I got to her temple, she greeted me and also asked me for the purpose of my visit. I told her that I came to collect an artificial beauty for my people. She promised to offer me help. Instantly she brought out a cup filled with blood and suddenly turned it into mercury, I mean some things like chemical substances. **There are many factories in the deep sea that produce many products you are buying every day in the market.** 

Afterward, Medusa gave me a chemical and told me that when I get to earth, I should mix it with ordinary rubber and it will turn into an attachment. The covenant we made together with that beast called Medusa is that **anybody that uses the product from that chemical, after death their appearance and hair shall turn and look exactly as hers** [Medusa]. I mean, whosoever indulges into attachment and beauty clamour or make-ups, after death their hair will turn to snakes and snake will never enter the kingdom of God.

That was the covenant she enlisted out for me and instructed me to market her product. In our kingdom, we do not give anything for free. The reward is that, after using her beauty on your head, after you die, your head's image and appearance will look the same as hers, and all your hair will turn to snakes. Instantly, I agreed with her and we signed the paper and the chemical was given to me. That was how we started producing the chemical and using it in the manufacturing of attachment for earthly consumption. You must stay away from artificial and rather remain natural. *It is your natural being that will make Heaven and not artificial. I am the author of all this attachment and perming, but I am telling you now that I am out of it. If you are still using them, your blood is on your head.* 

All the women using satanic clothing and any other satanic products are cursed by God. Your failure in marriage is as a result of spiritual husband which you brought upon yourself. Afterward, you will cast the whole blame upon witches and spiritual husband. This problem is caused by your involvement into worldly attires. **The anger of God is the element that empowers the spiritual husbands, ancestral demons, witches, and wizard to afflict you**. God will therefore watch them torture you. He is silent because He knows you are in the chain of sin.

Some may tend to justify themselves by saying "If God instructed us not to wear earrings because it is abominable, then why are we piercing our ears? **Do you know the meaning of ear piercing?** In the land of Israel, it is slaves whose ears were pierced in order to distinguish and separate them from the free born of the land. Deuteronomy 15:16-17 "But if your servant says to you, "I do not want to leave you," because he loves you and your family and is well off with you, <sup>17</sup>then take an awl and push it through his ear lobe into the door, and he will become your servant for life. Do the same for your maidservant."

Therefore, if you want to be slaves forever, continue wearing earrings, but remember Heaven is for sons and daughters of God and not for slaves. If you want to be a slave forever; you can continue putting earrings. Even if you have already pierced your ears, God can still forgive you only if you stop wearing earrings on them. That notwithstanding, some continue piercing the ears of their children due to ignorance, thereby enslaving themselves and their children into perpetual bondage of slavery and Hell. Hence, if you are into this sinful act of slavery, the above scripture is meant for you.

I do not want you to be another victim or candidate of Hell because of fashion. That is the reason why I am making this great sounding warning; thereby calling you for an urgent repentance and change of mind-set. This message will bring salvation to your soul if you accept it and take necessary action. Howbeit, this was how we used to produce attachment in order to condemn people to Hell fire. We obviously and keenly knew that God disapproved and hated every form of worldly system of fashion. **God hates artificial beauty: painting, attachment, and worldly clothing with perfect hatred.** 

# 20- Women wearing trousers

I will like to emphasize on women wearing trousers. One day by chance, I listened to a TV interview of a so-called woman of God; she was a pastor and Mrs..! The interviewer asked her a question: "Madam some Christians say it is not good for a woman to wear trouser, how do you see to that?" She said, "The Bible says my people are perishing because of lack of knowledge. Please my dear do not mind them. They do not know there is a different between women's trousers and men's trousers. If you wear ladies' trousers and not men's trousers it isn't a sin." The statement made by that woman of satan is a big lie. There is nothing like women's trousers. Moreover, I am the person who designed and invented women's trousers during our meeting in the kingdom of darkness.

**Deuteronomy 22:5** "A woman must not wear men's clothing, nor a man wear women's clothing, for the Lord your God detests anyone who does this." This is happening because we have read the scriptures; and discovered that God hated it because it is abominable. God says He hates it and He has already pronounced it once. The next shall be during judgment followed by eternal punishment in Hell. These are the reasons why you ought to research and read your Bible before death comes knocking. If you decide to deceive yourself by the false teachings of the pastors of satan, you will spend eternity in Hell.

Someone once told me that in their culture, men always tie and wear wrapper. I asked her, is your culture designed by a demon or by God? Hence, most of our cultures are designed and introduced by demons. Even the ways we react and carry out our activities are mostly designed by demons behind our traditions. Even if you believe that men should tie wrapper, ask yourself: is it biblical? Inasmuch as you know that wrapper was meant for women, the best thing is to separate yourself from it. Please forget everything about culture and allow the Bible to be your culture.

Some people even told me that in western world, it was the culture for white women to wear trousers. I prove to them that it was a lie. Google-out and watch those ancient western movies. You will see how white women used to wear long flowing gowns, which looked like wedding gowns, very elaborate and wide like an umbrella. They would also put sucks or gloves in their hand with a small hat on their head. This was their style of clothing and not trousers. It was later in modern days that women started wearing trousers. *Wearing of trousers by the western world was recently introduced to oppose the agenda of God.* Do no longer deceive yourself.

This is what prompted us to introduce trousers into the church. Today, it is unfortunate to see so-called female Christians, some of which call themselves prophetesses or pastors, dressing in trousers, wearing make-ups and other forms of paintings in the church like Delilah. Even some of their cleavage parts

are exposed; half of their breast is exposed. The main reason we designed half naked dresses was so that our agents would seduce men. Therefore, if you dress up as they do, you are one of them. Some women manipulate their dress, they wear a long skirt and make an opening around their laps, while some will reamend their skirt to mini quarter and tightly size, thereby showing their inner panty line to seduce men.

Therefore, if you want to remain in the Church, please be perfect. And if you do not want to, just move out instead of tagging yourself as an agent of darkness or serving as agent for the kingdom of darkness. You cannot be in the Church and at the same time outside the Church. You must either choose one or else Heaven will spill you out. Please be very careful; if you want to be for the kingdom of Heaven, be for the kingdom of Heaven; and if you want to stand against the kingdom of Heaven, stand against it and be ready to face the judgment. Henceforth, if you do not know which path to follow or which kingdom to serve, this testimony is giving you an insight view on the path to follow.

I am not the only person professing this truth. There are so many that had died and later woke up and testified about their encounter either in Heaven or in Hell. They were not agents of darkness and neither were they in the kingdom of darkness but yet, God revealed these facts to them. Why can you not believe and hearken unto their testimony? Or do you expect Jesus Christ to come down from Heaven and say it to you again? *Moreover, concerning this worldly clothing in the church, we have used it to destroy and send many Christians and ministers of God to Hell fire.* Many of them did not fornicate, steal, commit murder or bewitch, but this little things I am professing is what lead them to Hell due to their ignorance.

This is the reason why the Bible says in Hosea 4:6 "My people are destroyed from lack of knowledge. Because you have rejected knowledge ..." This is the reason we have the Holy Spirit and you must ensure you obtain Him. The Holy Spirit is supposed to reveal all these things to you. The major work of the Holy Spirit is to guide you to Heaven. **That holy spirit you have that always does miracles, and that always speaks in tongue, but will not tell you things that will hinder you from making Heaven, is a counterfeit holy spirit**. The major work of genuine Holy Spirit is to guide you to Heaven and not only to do miracles every day.

### **21- Danger of attending fake churches**

In our counterfeit churches, we had also programmed the hands of our fake pastors. We had to computerize their hands with spiritual black gloves. **Anybody they took to the water for water baptism; the moment they plunge you into the water, they consciously dedicate and initiate you into the marine kingdom, into the hands of the queen of the coast. Hence, by indulging into water baptism, you can also be initiated**, because their hands had been programmed for initiation, thereby connecting you into the hands of the queen of the coast.

Whenever you go to their church, anything can happen to you. When they lay hands on you, you are initiated because their hands had been programmed. Their initiation is very strong and powerful. If you went there for

their miracles, it means you went there for initiation. *Always remember this; the devil is not a fool. The devil gives and also takes, this is how he operates, please be very careful.* You can also be initiated through holy communion. You might even be the person that brought the wine, but laying hands on it can contaminate it. So, remember that the holy communion (blood and bread) they give you is not the blood and flesh of Jesus Christ. It is the blood and flesh of an antichrist. That is the reason why you ought to be very careful.

Only the genuine Holy Spirit that dwells in you will help you discern the right pastor or the good church. If truly you want to go to Heaven, immediately you receive Christ, the first target should be to seek how to obtain the genuine Holy Spirit. If you do not seek the genuine Holy Spirit, there are multitudes of deceivers in the church. They will deceive and lure you into sinfulness due to your ignorance. You can be deceived anywhere, but the Holy Spirit will come gently and tell you the right path to take if you live in obedience.

You can also be initiated during church events. Our agents will join those who will be cooking food for the occasion, because they know that many people will attend the programme. At times, if the church makes an arrangement of slaughtering a cow for a celebration, before daybreak, our demonic agents will transform the cow into a human being. You would therefore be initiated into the kingdom of darkness by what you have eaten. I want to use this medium to plead with you pastors; if you want to carry out any event in your church, whatever they bring for the ceremony, ensure you give yourself time to pray over it. Sanctify it all with the blood of Jesus Christ to nullify the plans of the devil and prevent people from being initiated in the church. *Many people are also initiated in hospitals, schools, nurseries, and universities and even in the banks.* 

# 22- My encounters with Jesus Christ

I will now explain how I met Christ. The day I encountered Jesus Christ I was on an assignment to check a record in Hell. During my days in the kingdom of darkness, we believed that Hell was not a terrible place. We could easily go in and out as special satanic agents. The fiery burning flames of Hell could not burn us and neither the heat hurt us, due to the satanic powers, which satan had deposited in us. Let me draw your attention to various testimonies of people who have gone to Hell and come back to earth with a special message full of horrors. My dear, if you are still pondering about the existence of Hell or perhaps **you do not believe the existence of Hell, please there is Hell and it is real**.

If you are one of my co-satanic associate or agent in those days and you still feel that Hell is nothing, please I am out of your kingdom. The reality about Hell is that Hell does exist. I was once deceived as you are deceived, but I am grateful to God for His mighty deliverance upon my life. Talking about Hell, there are different places and departments in Hell. Any damn soul in Hell at this moment is just in the entrance of Hell fire while the real main Hell is deeper. The deepest part of Hell is known as the lake of fire. The name of any human being born on earth is written in Hell.

#### **22.1-** My first encounter with Jesus

One fateful day I was going to Hell to check the name of a brother, upright, fearful, and obedient to God. That day I discovered that the day every person is born and his name is given to him, about 70 demons are automatically attached to him. There is no way you will commit sin secretly that the demons would not know. This brother committed a sin and the stand by and monitoring demons that were monitoring him quickly sent us a signal. The brother was a graduate, but he was frustrated, no work, no wife, no house, no children for many years. We rendered him useless just because he was upright and feared of God. We were tormenting and frustrating the brother by shutting down all his financial breakthroughs, connections and prosperity, because he refused to compromise his faith. Immediately he compromised his faith, a signal was sent throughout the whole world; because I was in charge of Africa continent.

I quickly went to make research in his personal life in order to execute him before his repentance. I was in a very high speed to Hell to carry out the assignment. Suddenly I heard someone calling my name. I had only two names by which I was called. Physically on earth my family knew one name while in the spiritually realm I was known by another name. During those years, I usually appeared in two different forms. At home, my family knew me as a good child whereas in the spirit I was dangerous.

Hence, I was surprised when I heard my physical name in the spirit world and kept wondering who could possibly know me by such name. None of my coagents had ever called me with my physical name in the spiritual realm. For this reason, I was furiously annoyed. The voice called the second time but I refused to hearken. He called the third time with annoyance and I looked back in order to behold and rebuke the person, but I was utterly amazed at the sight of the strange personality. I cannot really describe how he looked like because he was tall and handsome. I never thought I could ever come across any man that possessed such attributes of handsomeness and beauty. I was amazed because in our knowledge, we thought it was lucifer who was the most beautiful personality on earth.

I was reasoning in thoughts, I recalled that we were once taught about the dazzling beauty of the Son of the owner; in our kingdom we do not call the name Jesus. I was wondering if He was the Son of the owner. But why is he so glamorously endowed with such beauty and handsomeness? While I was still pondering over this, he called my name and said: I stopped you because I want to give you a message. I was so surprised, I laughed and tinkled, *you want to give me a message, but your word says, you know your people and your people know you.* He said, *"The earth is the Lord's and everything that dwelt in it ..."* Psalm 24:1. Then I said, *but your word says that nobody can serve two masters.* Matthew 6:24. He replied, *"... with God all things are possible."* Matthew 19:26.

I wanted to utter a third quotation, but I remembered we were taught in the kingdom of darkness that whenever you are in an encounter in word with any strong Christian or personality, if they win you in the first and the second encounter with the word, and finally win you in the third attempt, you will become their slave under the power of words. For this reason, I did not want

him to win me again. Hence, I pretended and said all right if that be the case say whatever you want to say. Then He said, you want to go to Hell to check records. I said yes. He said, no problem, if that is the place you want to go I will permit you to go. Before He finished His statement, a strange whirl force turned my face toward Hell and I was accelerating with a greater speed that I had never experienced before in my life.

As I said, since I had been voyaging to Hell, I had never felt the fiery burning heat of Hell. However, that day as I was running in high speed to Hell the heat kept increasing. I felt the heat terribly; it was so intense and horrible. I could not bear the heat anymore because all my soul was almost burning and turning into charcoal. When the pain was so severe and terrible to bear, I remembered that while I was still schooling in the kingdom of darkness, my satanic lecturer taught us that a soldier that is not dead will certainly live to fight another day. Therefore, it is better I pretend and surrender to this man so that he will not kill me, so I would go and get prepared in order to fight him another day.

Nevertheless, I succumbed to Jesus in my pretence and screamed in a loud voice, alright I will go where ever you want me to go, please send me, I will go. Immediately I shouted and proclaimed this agreement tune, within a twinkling of an eye the speedy force that was transporting me to Hell suddenly stopped, reversed, and brought me back to the feet of Jesus Christ. My face was bowed down before Him, but I struggled to behold His face once again in order to surrender my willingness and told Him to give me His message, but I could not. It was His grace that empowered me to behold His face during my first "word" encounter with Him. I did not know that it was not easy to behold the face of Jesus Christ. Yet with great effort, I tried to look at His face. My dear brethren, the radiance and brightness of light, forces and mighty powers that emit from His eyes is 100 times greater than the reflecting beam light of the sun.

Afterward, I discovered that the powerful force of the light that emitted from His face had destroyed many things in my body because every part of my body was enchanted with demonic weapons, which was comprised of thousands of snakes. My hair, eyes, nails, stomach etc. were all charmed with dangerous weapons. Everything was destroyed by the powerful force that beamed from the face of Jesus Christ, including all the powers I always used for astral travelling. I became powerless and empty. Then He said, *listen to the message and assignment I am giving you. Go back to the world and tell my people that I am coming for them because the rapture will soon take place. The time is up. Tell My people to prepare and not to look back.* 

As He made the last statement, I suddenly woke up. Immediately I woke up, my dear brethren, I could not find it easy with my body. That fiery heat of Hell fire that dried my soul, veins, ribs, and muscles in the spiritual realm affected me greatly. When I awoke up, I discovered that my blood was dried and my body temperature was so high. There were pains all over my body and I fell sick. As I was crying, my parent came around me asking why I am shedding tears; but I lied to them that I had stomach pain. I did not want to expose the secret to them. My parents were surprised and later took me to the hospital because they had never seen me in such a condition before.

To my utmost surprise, I did not know that the kingdoms of darkness were already aware of my encounter with Jesus Christ and my predicament. They had already arranged how to send a message across to me. **One of our agents, a woman of the medical corps also fell sick in her husband's house in order to come and talk to me.** When I got to the hospital, I met her in the same hospital room where I was admitted. After everybody had left the room, she started ministering to me, even if you were in the room you would not know that she was talking to me. She told me, "Please sorry, we all saw the encounter and also what transpired within your body system". I was so annoyed and retorted, "So all of you saw me, but refused to come to my aid. Why couldn't you come and rescue me, what if that man had killed me?" She burst into laughter and said, **He cannot kill you**. I said but He has destroyed all my powers. She replied, "Yes we know He has destroyed all your powers, that is the reason why I am sent in order to give you some powers that will enable you come to our meeting." I was greatly annoyed but I accepted the power.

After some days, I went to the meeting but was seriously annoyed with them. **There was a powerful screen in our kingdom, which revealed every activity. There is no hidden secret in the whole world that is not exposed on the screen**. I retorted, "So you all were here watching me through the screen and refused to assist me, what if that man had killed me?" They all laugh and said, "He cannot kill you because He is a merciful God; He purposely wanted to give you a message. Please do not hearken unto Him for He is **powerless, He does not have any power.**" I retorted, "That is how you have been deceiving me; you told me that this man has no power, how did He manage to destroy all my powers after you have affirmed that I have been given a greater power that no man can challenge?" You told me that man that tormented me in such a disastrous manner, who used His power to dry all my powers?

They replied, "Do not hearken and neither follow Him for He is powerless. If you follow Him you will lose." Then I said, "Inasmuch as He has power more than you I will follow Him." They replied, "If you intend to follow Him, don't you know how many of His servants you have killed? Let's assume he has power why couldn't He deliver them from you? This means that He is powerless, that is how He always entices them to follow Him and later forsakes them for the enemy to kill them. Therefore, if you follow Him, you will also be killed the same way you killed many of His servants." That was how they convinced me not to follow Him because I had killed many of His ministers.

I said, "If truly this man has power why couldn't He deliver them from my hands? No, I wouldn't follow Him." Thereafter I was equipped with more powers than before, I became more powerful. Formerly I was not attacking churches but only indulging in church pollution, initiating worldliness in churches and defilement of the congregation. But, after this encounter with Jesus, I angrily focused my attacks on pastors and other ministers of God. ... God knew that nobody could preach to me to repent. All the numerous divine revelation messages of Heaven and Hell and the testimonies of those that formerly served satan, are purposely enacted by God in order to convince you and also to bring mankind to repentance. If all these divine revelations and testimonies do not

bring your heart to repentance, and if you refuse to change from your wickedness, Hell fire shall change you, but it will be too late. **Repentance in Hell shall amount into an everlasting torment and doom while today's repentance on earth shall bring about salvation.** Heaven and Hell are real, you are warned.

# 22.2- My second encounter with Jesus

The second encounter that led to my salvation occurred in my dream. In that dream, the sky began contracting and shrinking mysteriously like someone folding up a mat. ... Suddenly the angels blew their trumpet and I saw multitude of people ascending up towards Heaven. When I perceived this, I was shocked because I was well educated in the kingdom of darkness that **all dreams are real and have reasons**, either with good or bad meaning. Due to this fact, I accepted the truth about rapture because no demon could disguise to deceive me in my dream, because I knew my level and rank in the kingdom of darkness. I was higher in rank for them to manipulate or deceive me. ... When the Heaven was closed, multitude of people were crying and lamenting; **ooh no, so rapture is real...!** I concluded to return back home and inform my household but I discovered that my mother had been raptured.

Then suddenly I woke up. When I awoke, I felt so touched, and I began weeping. My mother and brothers ran into my room and were questioning me and demanding for answers. The terrible fear and shock prompted me to narrate the whole story to them. With such severe touch and terrible fear I felt within me, I quickly removed all my earrings, chains and all worldly attire from my body. Then I pretended to be born again, though I was not, I was just pretending because I was greatly in shock and fear of the whole dream and also annoyed with my fellow colleagues in the kingdom of darkness. They knew that rapture was real, yet they concealed it from us.

This prompted me to surrender to Christ at that period but I did not give up my powers. All my powers were still active and intact within me because I wanted to know more about Jesus Christ and Christendom. I perceived there was a mystery behind such secret and reason why we were kept in darkness from knowing the secret of the rapture, Jesus Christ and Christianity. I started attending Bible studies and weekly church activities and meetings, asking questions in order to acquire more knowledge about Christendom.

However, after some weeks I went back to my satanic meeting in order to relay about the shocking dream I had because they told us that **all dreams are real and have meaning**. Therefore how come about rapture? "You told us that rapture isn't real but I saw it in my dream, why? How come, what is going on"? The demons were utterly surprised. They started lying while attempting to defend themselves but I immediately discovered their lying motives. I was very furious with them because they could not deceive me anymore.

"You told me that all dreams are real and have meaning, yet why can you not explain the meaning of the rapture to me? How did rapture come to my dream?" There were uproars and arguments between us, because they concealed the truth from me. After my annoyance with them, I declared to them that the person I saw on that throne in my dream, His name is "Jesus". You dare not

mention the name of Jesus in the kingdom of darkness, moreover we were warned seriously never to mention the name of Jesus in our kingdom, but I purposely mentioned His name in order to injure them. Immediately I mentioned the name "Jesus", the whole place scattered with great turmoil; thunder strike, fire storm, and a mighty quake which erupted with shockwave, which greatly injured many of them.

The demons were so annoyed and later got me arrested and placed me in their holding cell. They chained me and were tormenting me day and night in their spiritual prison. But physically on earth, I fell sick and my parents were treating me medically with drugs. They thought I had typhoid fever. The sickness was so severe and they thought it was just an ordinary illness; but unknown to them that the punishment and affliction I was incurring from demonic prison of the kingdom of darkness was the reason why I was being tormented physically on earth with those sicknesses and symptoms.

## **22.3- My third encounter with Jesus**

After several months, the demons released me from their spiritual prison and commissioned me to continue in my satanic enterprises, which I was obliged to. I accepted. After 6 months, I had another encounter. I witnessed the great day of the Lord according to Revelation 16:1-21, that great day is coming upon the whole world, especially those that are into witchcraft practice, satanism, occultism and demonic kingdoms and unbelievers, ritualists and blood suckers.

**Revelation 16:1-6** "Then I heard a loud voice from the temple saying to the seven angels, "Go and pour out the bowls of the wrath of God on the earth." <sup>2</sup>So the first went and poured out his bowl upon the earth, and a foul and loathsome sore came upon the men who had the mark of the beast and those who worshiped his image. <sup>3</sup>Then the second angel poured out his bowl on the sea, and it became blood as of a dead man; and every living creature in the sea died. <sup>4</sup>Then the third angel poured out his bowl on the rivers and springs of water, and they became blood. <sup>5</sup>And I heard the angel of the waters saying: "You are righteous, O Lord, the One who is and who was and who is to be, because You have judged these things. <sup>6</sup>For they have shed the blood of saints and prophets, and You have given them blood to drink. For it is their just due."

That very day is fast approaching. Everyone on earth especially you that call yourself a witch, wizard, ritualist and occultist, you shall be tired of sucking blood. On that very day, God shall saturate the whole world with blood; you will suck and be tired of blood. The wicked one shall be soaked with blood. Therefore, if you have opted to be attending your witchcraft meetings in order to shed blood, on that very day your fridge, bathroom, toilet, bucket, plates, gutter and water reservoir and everything around you shall be filled with blood and you shall be greatly shamed.

At the moment, you think that God is powerless. This is a wrong perception that pushes you to indulge yourself into bloodshed and human sacrifice. It is rather a pity on you to have such an assumption. God has purposely set aside, a period, a day, and timeline for your judgment and He shall judge without mercy. On the judgment day of God, your entire secret shall be made manifest. You'd better seek His mercy while it is still time and while He is still accessible, because tomorrow might be too late.

My dear, what I saw at the sea coast was so terrible because it was filled with blood. Even the demons that also lived beneath the sea, though they cannot die, were so much afraid that they had to run out from their hidden places. The whole sea was filled with blood so much so that it became uncomfortable for both the demons and aquatic animals to abide thereof. The whole earth was terribly filled with terror, commotion, and panic. I was so much annoyed when I saw the queen of the coast running out from her kingdom and walking on earth surface, even though she could not move majestically on earth surface because half of her body is fish with scales while other half is human being. The queen of the coast was running speedily for her dear life with terror, fear and panic.

When I saw this, I exclaimed; so something can happen that will cause you to run in this fearful manner? I was greatly shocked, annoyed, and surprised. This caused me to discern that something mighty is really about to happen, something which is bigger than the whole world and also greater than the queen of the coast can bear. I saw the queen of heaven fall from her throne in her kingdom. She was blown by the winds and she was running helter-skelter. I was utterly amazed but pondered, "So this spirit being can be shaken and terrorized by a mighty and greater power? No, I need to seek for more powers."

When I awoke from my dream after having these entire dreadful incidents and was greatly in fear, I finally regained my conscience. I said, "This is terrible, so these people are not the most superior beings in the world?" It troubled and pierced my heart, I was so confused. Afterward I went to our meeting in the kingdom of darkness and confronted them; I explained to them what I saw. "You told me that you were mightier and stronger than the Son of the owner but I saw you all in total panic and despair".

After sharing the vision of the great tribulation to them, they did not give me any real justification which made me to affirm that indeed these demons are full of deception and have been deceiving me all this while. This prompted me to make a personal decision and later indulged in a quest of seeking for deliverance and also where to get rooted in the divine word of God. Unfortunately for me, while I was seeking for a sound place of worship, wanting to hear more about the rapture, the great tribulation, God's judgment, righteousness, inward and outward holiness, modesty and purity, my heart was pierced due to the kind of messages pastors and other ministers of God were preaching during that period of my innermost desire of the sound Gospel of God. It was so pathetic.

The pastors were laying more emphasis on breakthroughs, financial blessings, and worldly possessions. They refused to preach and counsel me on how to make the rapture, how to amend my wicked ways and wrong doings, and how to undergo restitution and remain in Jesus. If you are a preacher of the Gospel, do not think that everyone you see in your church is burdened with financial needs or seeking for miracles. Some of the members in your church are not seeking for financial breakthrough or any sort of miracle but rather salvation. Some come for salvation because they have tasted and enjoyed wealth, power, and perverse things of this world but could not find any satisfaction or peace.

### **22.4-** My fourth encounter with Jesus

After this fourth encounter, I made up my mind to surrender my life totally to God. Thereafter, I commenced going to several churches seeking for personal deliverance. Whenever I narrated my ordeal to any deliverance minister or pastor, they would breathe deeply and exclaim, and ask me to come back tomorrow or next week. Sadly, at the appointed day, the pastor would refuse to give attention but I would meet his wife who would inform me that the pastor has travelled. Then it would be clear to me that he did not want to listen to my plea for deliverance then I would go to another church.

After sharing my story to another set of pastors, they would practically reply, "Sorry, we do not think we can help you". The situation continued with none to help for my deliverance. More than 20-50 pastors ran away after hearing my ordeals. By the grace of God, I met a sincere man of God. After sharing my ordeal with him he vibrantly replied, "My daughter, I cannot deceive you, there is no pastor that can stand to conduct deliverance on you because your atrocities are numerous. It's only God that can forgive you. And if truly you have an encounter with Christ, it's only that Christ that can deliver you."

While seeking deliverance, I virtually lost everything. The kingdom of darkness attacked me severely because they had detected my intentions of surrendering to Jesus and willingness of getting delivered from the kingdom of darkness. I was totally wrecked down financially, hanging around in hopelessness. I patiently waited upon the Lord for about 6 months; yet I did not receive any vision, revelation, or dream that indicates that He is with me or wants to use me. But instead of having divine ministration I always encountered several demonic attacks, weaknesses and oppression in dreams. God allowed me to undergo those trials because if I had been assisted, there would have been the tendency of being polluted by demonic agents. I think God did not let me seek help from other people in order that I be strengthened in prayers and become serious with him. Even though He refused to listen to my plea, I chose rather to die and meet with Him in Heaven than to give up.

After these 6 months, Jesus Christ appeared to me again with divine consolation and revealed some mysteries to me. He showed me some diabolical powers in my body, which were hidden from me and also instructed me how to pray against them. He instructed me to commence my prayer on a specific week and pray against some powers deposited in my brain, tongue, eyes, armpit, and diverse places in my body, which I was not aware of. He revealed every secret thing about me, including my blood system and gradually deliverance started taking place. Nobody laid hands on me or ever conducted deliverance on me except God through self-deliverance. I am ever grateful to God. **[End of Testimony].** 

### 23- Lessons to be learned

The testimony of **1000 Years in the World of Darkness** as well as the **Testimony of a Resurrected**, presents astonishing aspects, which any person may find strange, including a true Christian. This made us not to be satisfied with accepting it as the ordinary testimonies that speak either of Ex-Satanists or of Heaven and Hell. For that reason, we went into the Bible to see if there were elements that could help us understand these points that are difficult to

understand for the carnal man. These points that we found better to verify concern firstly, the fact that someone is able to spend nearly 1000 years or even more in the world of darkness, and go to and fro on the earth; secondly, the notion of stars of men; thirdly, the fact that the world of darkness can spot the true servants of God hundreds of years before they are born; fourthly, the notion of a Master Plan, and fifthly, the fact that the world of darkness can change the plan that God has planned for humans.

# **23.1-** Can anyone leave the world of darkness and come to earth?

This first point has already been the subject of a whole teaching that I made available to you more than two decades ago, which is entitled **"Discernment"**. This testimony only confirmed The Discernment, and anyone who has already read this teaching can no longer be surprised to learn that someone from the world of darkness has come to earth, no matter how many times. As the teaching on Discernment has already dealt with this aspect in detail, we will not dwell on it any further. Those who have not yet read it can find it on the website www.mcreveil.org, in the Teachings section. The answer to this first question that we asked ourselves is **YES**.

# 23.2- Notion of stars of men

If we need to talk about the notion of the star of men in general, and of God's children in particular, we have several instances of it in the Bible, even though very often you seem to see only one example, that of Jesus Christ in **Matthew 2:1-2**. *"Now after Jesus was born in Bethlehem of Judea in the days of Herod the king, behold, wise men from the East came to Jerusalem, <sup>2</sup>saying, "Where is He who has been born King of the Jews? For we have seen His star in the East and have come to worship Him."* 

The Bible tells us in Revelation 22:16 that Jesus is the bright morning star. "*I*, *Jesus, have sent My angel to testify to you these things in the churches. I am the Root and the Offspring of David, the Bright and Morning Star." What Jesus is, is what His true children are, except for His status as Christ. Therefore, if Jesus is the Bright and Morning Star, it is no wonder that His true children are other bright stars as well.* 

There are many other examples, beloved. God has repeatedly spoken of His Children by referring to the stars. If you always thought that it was just a way of speaking, you now understand that the true Children of God are like stars, and they are in reality stars, and they each have their own star.

**Genesis 15:1-5** "After these things the word of the Lord came to Abram in a vision, saying, "Do not be afraid, Abram. I am your shield, your exceedingly great reward." ... <sup>3</sup>Then Abram said, "Look, You have given me no offspring; indeed one born in my house is my heir!" <sup>4</sup>And behold, the word of the Lord came to him, saying, "This one shall not be your heir, but one who will come from your own body shall be your heir." <sup>5</sup>Then He brought him outside and said, "Look now toward heaven, and count the **stars** if you are able to number them." And He said to him, "So shall your descendants be."

**Nehemiah 9:23** "You also multiplied their children as the **stars** of heaven, And brought them into the land Which You had told their fathers To go in and possess."

# 23.3- Can the world of darkness spot the true servants of God before they are born?

The Bible throughout gives us the story and lives of many sons of the Most High, who came to earth to do the work of their heavenly Father. We will examine the lives of some of these Servants of God to see if the testimony we have just read is confirmed. We will go from the case of God's only begotten Son, Jesus Christ Himself, to the cases of some of those whom God sent before, during, or after Jesus Christ's ministry on earth.

## 23.3.1- Joseph's case

Genesis 37:3-28 "3Now Israel loved Joseph more than all his children, because he was the son of his old age. Also he made him a tunic of many colors. <sup>4</sup>But when his brothers saw that their father loved him more than all his brothers, they hated him and could not speak peaceably to him. <sup>5</sup>Now Joseph had a dream, and he told it to his brothers; and they hated him even more. <sup>6</sup>So he said to them, "Please hear this dream which I have dreamed: <sup>7</sup>"There we were, binding sheaves in the field. Then behold, my sheaf arose and also stood upright; and indeed your sheaves stood all around and bowed down to my sheaf." <sup>8</sup>And his brothers said to him, "Shall you indeed reign over us? Or shall you indeed have dominion over us?" So they hated him even more for his dreams and for his words. <sup>9</sup>Then he dreamed still another dream and told it to his brothers, and said, "Look, I have dreamed another dream. And this time, the sun, the moon, and the eleven stars bowed down to me." <sup>10</sup>So he told it to his father and his brothers; and his father rebuked him and said to him, "What is this dream that you have dreamed? Shall your mother and I and your brothers indeed come to bow down to the earth before you?" <sup>11</sup>And his brothers envied him, but his father kept the matter in mind. <sup>12</sup>Then his brothers went to feed their father's flock in Shechem. <sup>13</sup>And Israel said to Joseph, "Are not your brothers feeding the flock in Shechem? Come, I will send you to them." So he said to him, "Here I am." <sup>14</sup>Then he said to him, "Please go and see if it is well with your brothers and well with the flocks, and bring back word to me." So he sent him out of the Valley of Hebron, and he went to Shechem. <sup>15</sup>Now a certain man found him, and there he was, wandering in the field. And the man asked him, saying, "What are you seeking?"

<sup>16</sup>So he said, "I am seeking my brothers. Please tell me where they are feeding their flocks." <sup>17</sup>And the man said, "They have departed from here, for I heard them say, 'Let us go to Dothan.'" So Joseph went after his brothers and found them in Dothan. <sup>18</sup>Now when they saw him afar off, even before he came near them, they conspired against him to kill him. <sup>19</sup>Then they said to one another, "Look, this dreamer is coming! <sup>20</sup>"Come therefore, let us now kill him and cast him into some pit; and we shall say, 'Some wild beast has devoured him.' We shall see what will become of his dreams!" <sup>21</sup>But Reuben heard it, and he delivered him out of their hands, and said, "Let us not kill him." <sup>22</sup>And Reuben said to them, "Shed no blood, but cast him into this pit which is in the wilderness, and do not lay a hand on him" - that he might deliver him out of their hands, and bring him back to his father. <sup>23</sup>So it came to pass, when Joseph had come to his brothers, that they stripped Joseph of his tunic, the tunic of many colors that was on him. <sup>24</sup>Then they took him and cast him into a pit. And the pit was

empty; there was no water in it. <sup>25</sup>And they sat down to eat a meal. Then they lifted their eyes and looked, and there was a company of Ishmaelites, coming from Gilead with their camels, bearing spices, balm, and myrrh, on their way to carry them down to Egypt. <sup>26</sup>So Judah said to his brothers, "What profit is there if we kill our brother and conceal his blood? <sup>27</sup>"Come and let us sell him to the Ishmaelites, and let not our hand be upon him, for he is our brother and our flesh." And his brothers listened. <sup>28</sup>Then Midianite traders passed by; so the brothers pulled Joseph up and lifted him out of the pit, and sold him to the Ishmaelites for twenty shekels of silver. And they took Joseph to Egypt."

This passage from Genesis 37 reveals how Joseph was fought. His life was known hundreds of years before, and a glimpse of that life was revealed to him in a dream. As the world of darkness could not kill him, they opted to sell him into slavery, hoping to silence his dreams. But as usual, what the world of darkness thought was its ultimate victory over Joseph, turned out to be its ultimate defeat. And once again, the confusion was extreme in the camp of satan.

## 23.3.2- Case of Moses

**Exodus 1:15-22** "<sup>15</sup>Then the king of Egypt spoke to the Hebrew midwives, of whom the name of one was Shiphrah and the name of the other Puah; <sup>16</sup>and he said, "When you do the duties of a midwife for the Hebrew women, and see them on the birthstools, if it is a son, then you shall kill him; but if it is a daughter, then she shall live." <sup>17</sup>But the midwives feared God, and did not do as the king of Egypt commanded them, but saved the male children alive. <sup>18</sup>So the king of Egypt called for the midwives and said to them, "Why have you done this thing, and saved the male children alive?" <sup>19</sup>And the midwives said to Pharaoh, "Because the Hebrew women are not like the Egyptian women; for they are lively and give birth before the midwives come to them." <sup>20</sup>Therefore God dealt well with the midwives, and the people multiplied and grew very mighty. <sup>21</sup>And so it was, because the midwives feared God, that He provided households for them. <sup>22</sup>So Pharaoh commanded all his people, saying, "Every son who is born you shall cast into the river, and every daughter you shall save alive."

Exodus 2:1-10 "And a man of the house of Levi went and took as wife a daughter of Levi. <sup>2</sup>So the woman conceived and bore a son. And when she saw that he was a beautiful child, she hid him three months. <sup>3</sup>But when she could no longer hide him, she took an ark of bulrushes for him, daubed it with asphalt and pitch, put the child in it, and laid it in the reeds by the river's bank. <sup>4</sup>And his sister stood afar off, to know what would be done to him. <sup>5</sup>Then the daughter of Pharaoh came down to bathe at the river. And her maidens walked along the riverside; and when she saw the ark among the reeds, she sent her maid to get it. <sup>6</sup>And when she had opened it, she saw the child, and behold, the baby wept. So she had compassion on him, and said, "This is one of the Hebrews' children." <sup>7</sup>Then his sister said to Pharaoh's daughter, "Shall I go and call a nurse for you from the Hebrew women, that she may nurse the child for you?" <sup>8</sup>And Pharaoh's daughter said to her, "Go." So the maiden went and called the child's mother. <sup>9</sup>Then Pharaoh's daughter said to her, "Take this child away and nurse him for me, and I will give you your wages." So the woman took the child and nursed him. <sup>10</sup>And the child grew, and she brought him to Pharaoh's daughter, and he became her son. So she called his name Moses, saying, "Because I drew him out of the water."

These passages from Exodus 1 and 2 reveal how Moses was fought. His birth was known hundreds of years before. Satan and his team had organized as much as they could to prevent his birth. Having realized in their world that it was impossible for them to prevent his birth, they raged against his life and ministry. They even managed to make him miss the promised land, only to realize later that their victory over Moses was not only short-lived, but also pointless. For it was this Moses who, along with Elijah, came to strengthen Jesus during His ministry, as we read in Matthew 17.

**Matthew 17:1-5** "Now after six days Jesus took Peter, James, and John his brother, led them up on a high mountain by themselves; <sup>2</sup>and He was transfigured before them. His face shone like the sun, and His clothes became as white as the light. <sup>3</sup>And behold, **Moses** and Elijah appeared to them, talking with Him. <sup>4</sup>Then Peter answered and said to Jesus, "Lord, it is good for us to be here; if You wish, let us make here three tabernacles: one for You, one for Moses, and one for Elijah." <sup>5</sup>While he was still speaking, behold, a bright cloud overshadowed them; and suddenly a voice came out of the cloud, saying, "This is My beloved Son, in whom I am well pleased. Hear Him!"

# 23.3.3- Case of Jeremiah

**Jeremiah 1:4-5** "<sup>4</sup>Then the word of the Lord came to me, saying: <sup>5</sup>"Before I formed you in the womb I knew you; before you were born I sanctified you; I ordained you a prophet to the nations."

This passage from Jeremiah 1:4-5 reveals that Jeremiah's birth as well as his ministry were known to God who sent him, and to the world of darkness whose mission is to fight against God, to fight against everything that God does, and all those that God sends. His life was a real misery as you read in his book. Satan and his agents fought fiercely against his ministry, hoping to stop him from working. But as usual, they failed, for God in His grace allowed Jeremiah to finish his ministry, much to the confusion of these agents of Hell.

## 23.3.4- Case of Jesus Christ

**Matthew 2:1-23** "<sup>1</sup>Now after Jesus was born in Bethlehem of Judea in the days of Herod the king, behold, wise men from the East came to Jerusalem, <sup>2</sup>saying, 'Where is He who has been born King of the Jews? For we have seen His star in the East and have come to worship Him.' <sup>3</sup>When Herod the king heard this, he was troubled, and all Jerusalem with him. <sup>4</sup>And when he had gathered all the chief priests and scribes of the people together, he inquired of them where the Christ was to be born. <sup>5</sup>So they said to him, in Bethlehem of Judea, for thus it is written by the prophet: <sup>6</sup>'But you, Bethlehem, in the land of Judah, are not the least among the rulers of Judah; for out of you shall come a Ruler who will shepherd My people Israel. <sup>7</sup>Then Herod, when he had secretly called the wise men, determined from them what time the star appeared. <sup>8</sup>And he sent them to Bethlehem and said, 'Go and search carefully for the young Child, and when you have found Him, bring back word to me, that I may come and worship Him also.' <sup>9</sup>When they heard the king, they departed; and behold, the star which they had

seen in the East went before them, till it came and stood over where the young Child was.

<sup>10</sup>When they saw the star, they rejoiced with exceedingly great joy. <sup>11</sup>And when they had come into the house, they saw the young Child with Mary His mother, and fell down and worshiped Him. And when they had opened their treasures, they presented gifts to Him: gold, frankincense, and myrrh. <sup>12</sup>Then, being divinely warned in a dream that they should not return to Herod, they departed for their own country another way. <sup>13</sup>Now when they had departed, behold, an angel of the Lord appeared to Joseph in a dream, saying, "Arise, take the young Child and His mother, flee to Egypt, and stay there until I bring you word; for Herod will seek the young Child to destroy Him." <sup>14</sup>When he arose, he took the young Child and His mother by night and departed for Egypt, <sup>15</sup> and was there until the death of Herod, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the Lord through the prophet, saying, "Out of Egypt I called My Son." <sup>16</sup>Then Herod, when he saw that he was deceived by the wise men, was exceedingly angry; and he sent forth and put to death all the male children who were in Bethlehem and in all its districts, from two years old and under, according to the time which he had determined from the wise men. <sup>17</sup>Then was fulfilled what was spoken by Jeremiah the prophet, saying:

<sup>18</sup>"A voice was heard in Ramah, Lamentation, weeping, and great mourning, Rachel weeping for her children, Refusing to be comforted, Because they are no more." <sup>19</sup>But when Herod was dead, behold, an angel of the Lord appeared in a dream to Joseph in Egypt, <sup>20</sup>saying, "Arise, take the young Child and His mother, and go to the land of Israel, for those who sought the young Child's life are dead." <sup>21</sup>Then he arose, took the young Child and His mother, and came into the land of Israel. <sup>22</sup>But when he heard that Archelaus was reigning over Judea instead of his father Herod, he was afraid to go there. And being warned by God in a dream, he turned aside into the region of Galilee. <sup>23</sup>And he came and dwelt in a city called Nazareth, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the prophets, "He shall be called a Nazarene."

This passage from Matthew 2 reveals how Jesus Christ was fought. His birth was known hundreds of years before. Satan and his team had organized themselves as much as they could, to prevent His birth. Having realized in their world that it was impossible for them to prevent His birth, they raged against His life and ministry. They even succeeded in killing Him, before realizing that the death of Jesus Christ meant their eternal defeat. Satan and his agents are therefore defeated forever. Hallelujah!

# 23.3.5- Case of John the Baptist

**Luke 1:5-17** "<sup>5</sup>There was in the days of Herod, the king of Judea, a certain priest named Zacharias, of the division of Abijah. His wife was of the daughters of Aaron, and her name was Elizabeth. <sup>6</sup>And they were both righteous before God, walking in all the commandments and ordinances of the Lord blameless. <sup>7</sup>But they had no child, because Elizabeth was barren, and they were both well advanced in years. <sup>8</sup>So it was, that while he was serving as priest before God in the order of his division, <sup>9</sup>according to the custom of the priesthood, his lot fell

to burn incense when he went into the temple of the Lord. <sup>10</sup>And the whole multitude of the people was praying outside at the hour of incense. <sup>11</sup>Then an angel of the Lord appeared to him, standing on the right side of the altar of incense. <sup>12</sup>And when Zacharias saw him, he was troubled, and fear fell upon him. <sup>13</sup>But the angel said to him, "Do not be afraid, Zacharias, for your prayer is heard; and your wife Elizabeth will bear you a son, and you shall call his name John. <sup>14</sup>"And you will have joy and gladness, and many will rejoice at his birth. <sup>15</sup>"For he will be great in the sight of the Lord, and shall drink neither wine nor strong drink. He will also be filled with the Holy Spirit, even from his mother's womb. <sup>16</sup>"And he will turn many of the children of Israel to the Lord their God. <sup>17</sup>"He will also go before Him in the spirit and power of Elijah, to turn the hearts of the fathers to the children,' and the disobedient to the wisdom of the just, to make ready a people prepared for the Lord."

**Mark 6:14-29** <sup>"14</sup>Now King Herod heard of Him, for His name had become well known. And he said, "John the Baptist is risen from the dead, and therefore these powers are at work in him." <sup>15</sup>Others said, "It is Elijah." And others said, "It is the Prophet, or like one of the prophets." <sup>16</sup>But when Herod heard, he said, "This is John, whom I beheaded; he has been raised from the dead!" <sup>17</sup>For Herod himself had sent and laid hold of John, and bound him in prison for the sake of Herodias, his brother Philip's wife; for he had married her. <sup>18</sup>For John had said to Herod, "It is not lawful for you to have your brother's wife." <sup>19</sup>Therefore Herodias held it against him and wanted to kill him, but she could not; <sup>20</sup>for Herod feared John, knowing that he was a just and holy man, and he protected him. And when he heard him, he did many things, and heard him gladly. <sup>21</sup>Then an opportune day came when Herod on his birthday gave a feast for his nobles, the high officers, and the chief men of Galilee. <sup>22</sup>And when Herodias' daughter herself came in and danced, and pleased Herod and those who sat with him, the king said to the girl, "Ask me whatever you want, and I will give it to you."

<sup>23</sup>He also swore to her, "Whatever you ask me, I will give you, up to half of my kingdom." <sup>24</sup>So she went out and said to her mother, "What shall I ask?" And she said, "The head of John the Baptist!" <sup>25</sup>Immediately she came in with haste to the king and asked, saying, "I want you to give me at once the head of John the Baptist on a platter." <sup>26</sup>And the king was exceedingly sorry; yet, because of the oaths and because of those who sat with him, he did not want to refuse her. <sup>27</sup>Immediately the king sent an executioner and commanded his head to be brought. And he went and beheaded him in prison, <sup>28</sup>brought his head on a platter, and gave it to the girl; and the girl gave it to her mother. <sup>29</sup>When his disciples heard of it, they came and took away his corpse and laid it in a tomb."

These passages from Luke 1 and Mark 6 reveal how John the Baptist was fought. His birth was known hundreds of years before, and fought by satan. By making Elizabeth his mother barren, the world of darkness thought that they would block John's birth. When their plan failed, they instead arranged for his beheading, to end his ministry. As usual, it was only much later that they realized that their so-called victory over John the Baptist was null and void, for he had perfectly finished his ministry, the rest of the task to be accomplished being reserved for the Elijah who was to come later, as foretold in Malachi 4. We will deal with this case soon, if the Lord permits. **Malachi 4:1-6** "For behold, the day is coming, Burning like an oven, And all the proud, yes, all who do wickedly will be stubble. And the day which is coming shall burn them up," Says the Lord of hosts, "That will leave them neither root nor branch. <sup>2</sup>But to you who fear My name The Sun of Righteousness shall arise With healing in His wings; and you shall go out And grow fat like stall-fed calves. <sup>3</sup>You shall trample the wicked, For they shall be ashes under the soles of your feet On the day that I do this," Says the Lord of hosts. ... <sup>5</sup>Behold, I will send you Elijah the prophet before the coming of the great and dreadful day of the Lord. <sup>6</sup>And he will turn the hearts of the fathers to the children, And the hearts of the children to their fathers, Lest I come and strike the earth with a curse."

# 23.4- Notion of the "Master Plans" of Humans

**Psalm 139:14-16** "<sup>14</sup>I will praise You, for I am fearfully and wonderfully made; marvelous are Your works, and that my soul knows very well. <sup>15</sup>My frame was not hidden from You, when I was made in secret, and skillfully wrought in the lowest parts of the earth. <sup>16</sup>Your eyes saw my substance, being yet unformed. And in Your book they all were written, the days fashioned for me, **when as yet there were none of them**."

**Ephesians 1:3-5** shows us that God elected us before the foundation of the world, and therefore He has a plan for us long before we were born on earth. "<sup>3</sup>Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, who has blessed us with every spiritual blessing in the heavenly places in Christ, <sup>4</sup>just **as He chose us in Him before the foundation of the world**, that we should be holy and without blame before Him in love, <sup>5</sup>having predestined us to adoption as sons by Jesus Christ to Himself, according to the good pleasure of His will."

The Bible clearly says that God has chosen us in Him before the foundation of the world. Do you think that our selection in Him is so hidden from the eyes of satan? No! If therefore satan knows that God has chosen us in Him, why should you be surprised that the world of darkness knows God's plan for us, and that it fights to destroy that plan, or to change it?

# 23.5- Can the world of darkness change the plan that God has for humans?

Beloved, if you seem not to have found this kind of case in the Bible, it is because you have not meditated enough on the different cases that would confirm this scenario. They are numerous.

# 23.5.1- Case of Moses

**Acts 7:20-23** "<sup>20</sup>At this time Moses was born, and was well pleasing to God; and he was brought up in his father's house for three months. <sup>21</sup>But when he was set out, Pharaoh's daughter took him away and brought him up as her own son. <sup>22</sup>And Moses was learned in all the wisdom of the Egyptians, and was mighty in words and deeds. <sup>23</sup>Now when he was forty years old, it came into his heart to visit his brethren, the children of Israel."

If we look closely, we see that God's plan for Moses was changed. Moses, who was to free the people of Israel, found himself being raised in a different culture

than that of his God, and in a different wisdom than that of his God. As you just read, Moses was well educated in all the wisdom of the Egyptians, but was ignorant of the wisdom of his God. Moses knew nothing of the God of whom he was nevertheless the servant, of this God who had nevertheless sent him on a mission on earth.

When the time came to liberate the people of God, the liberator did not know himself, he did not recognize himself as liberator, and he did not know the God of the people he was to liberate. He finally had to leave Egypt to meet the God who had sent him on a mission on earth, and to learn everything about that God, and even about his mission. And you know how long it took, forty good years, for God to reprogram his "Master Plan". And while God reprogrammed his "Master Plan", the people continued waiting for their deliverer in suffering. This is the reality, beloved. If you still doubted the great power of nuisance of satan, I have just given you another proof.

## 23.5.2- Case of Rahab

Joshua 2:1-24 "Now Joshua the son of Nun sent out two men from Acacia Grove to spy secretly, saying, 'Go, view the land, especially Jericho.' So they went, and came to the house of a harlot named Rahab, and lodged there. <sup>2</sup>And it was told the king of Jericho, saying, 'Behold, men have come here tonight from the children of Israel to search out the country.' <sup>3</sup>So the king of Jericho sent to Rahab, saying, 'Bring out the men who have come to you, who have entered your house, for they have come to search out all the country.' <sup>4</sup>Then the woman took the two men and hid them. So she said, 'Yes, the men came to me, but I did not know where they were from. <sup>5</sup>And it happened as the gate was being shut, when it was dark, that the men went out. Where the men went I do not know; pursue them quickly, for you may overtake them.' 6(But she had brought them up to the roof and hidden them with the stalks of flax, which she had laid in order on the roof.) <sup>7</sup>Then the men pursued them by the road to the Jordan, to the fords. And as soon as those who pursued them had gone out, they shut the gate. <sup>8</sup>Now before they lay down, she came up to them on the roof, <sup>9</sup>and said to the men: "I know that the Lord has given you the land, that the terror of you has fallen on us, and that all the inhabitants of the land are fainthearted because of you.

<sup>10</sup>For we have heard how the Lord dried up the water of the Red Sea for you when you came out of Egypt, and what you did to the two kings of the Amorites who were on the other side of the Jordan, Sihon and Og, whom you utterly destroyed. <sup>11</sup>And as soon as we heard these things, our hearts melted; neither did there remain any more courage in anyone because of you, for the Lord your God, He is God in heaven above and on earth beneath. <sup>12</sup>Now therefore, I beg you, swear to me by the Lord, since I have shown you kindness, that you also will show kindness to my father's house, and give me a true token, <sup>13</sup>and spare my father, my mother, my brothers, my sisters, and all that they have, and deliver our lives from death. <sup>14</sup>So the men answered her, "Our lives for yours, if none of you tell this business of ours. And it shall be, when the Lord has given us the land, that we will deal kindly and truly with you. <sup>15</sup>Then she let them down by a rope through the window, for her house was on the city wall; she dwelt on the wall. <sup>16</sup>And she said to them, 'Get to the mountain, lest the pursuers meet

#### **1000 YEARS IN THE WORLD OF DARKNESS**

you. Hide there three days, until the pursuers have returned. Afterward you may go your way.' <sup>17</sup>So the men said to her: We will be blameless of this oath of yours which you have made us swear, <sup>18</sup>unless, when we come into the land, you bind this line of scarlet cord in the window through which you let us down, and unless you bring your father, your mother, your brothers, and all your father's household to your own home.

<sup>19</sup>So it shall be that whoever goes outside the doors of your house into the street, his blood shall be on his own head, and we will be guiltless. And whoever is with you in the house, his blood shall be on our head if a hand is laid on him. <sup>20</sup>And if you tell this business of ours, then we will be free from your oath which you made us swear. <sup>21</sup>Then she said, 'According to your words, so be it.' And she sent them away, and they departed. And she bound the scarlet cord in the window. <sup>22</sup>They departed and went to the mountain, and stayed there three days until the pursuers returned. The pursuers sought them all along the way, but did not find them. <sup>23</sup>So the two men returned, descended from the mountain, and crossed over; and they came to Joshua the son of Nun, and told him all that had befallen them. <sup>24</sup>And they said to Joshua, "Truly the LORD has delivered all the land into our hands, for indeed all the inhabitants of the country are fainthearted because of us."

**Matthew 1:1-16** "The book of the genealogy of Jesus Christ, the Son of David, the Son of Abraham: <sup>2</sup>Abraham begot Isaac, Isaac begot Jacob, and Jacob begot Judah and his brothers. <sup>3</sup>Judah begot Perez and Zerah by Tamar, Perez begot Hezron, and Hezron begot Ram. <sup>4</sup>Ram begot Amminadab, Amminadab begot Nahshon, and Nahshon begot Salmon. <sup>5</sup>Salmon begot Boaz by Rahab, Boaz begot Obed by Ruth, Obed begot Jesse, <sup>6</sup>and Jesse begot David the king. David the king begot Solomon by her who had been the wife of Uriah. ...<sup>16</sup>And Jacob begot Joseph the husband of Mary, of whom was born Jesus who is called Christ."

If we look closely, we see that God's plan for Rahab was changed. Rahab, who was intended to be part of the lineage of the Lord Jesus Christ, found herself in Jericho living a different life from the one her God had planned for her. She found herself unwillingly in prostitution. As you have just read, at the sight of Joshua's envoys, Rahab's spirit quickly recognized the spirit of her real spy brothers. She did not need dreams and visions to understand that she had to hide and protect her brothers. The Spirit of God within her communicated it to her. She had begged the two spies to spare her life and the lives of her entire large family. In making this request, she thought she was asking a favour from a foreign people, where as it was her true "Master Plan" that God was restoring, to return her to the midst of His true people. It took the destruction of the city to which satan had redirected her, for her to be restored to her true people and her place in the lineage of the Saviour of her people.

And you know what it cost her, a life of debauchery and misery for which she was not originally destined to. That is the reality, beloved. If you still doubted the harmful role of satan against Children of God, I have just given you another proof.

### 23.5.3- Case of Ruth

**Deuteronomy 23:3-6** "<sup>3</sup>An Ammonite or Moabite shall not enter the assembly of the Lord; even to the tenth generation none of his descendants shall enter

the assembly of the Lord forever, <sup>4</sup>because they did not meet you with bread and water on the road when you came out of Egypt, and because they hired against you Balaam the son of Beor from Pethor of Mesopotamia, to curse you. <sup>5</sup>Nevertheless the Lord your God would not listen to Balaam, but the Lord your God turned the curse into a blessing for you, because the Lord your God loves you. <sup>6</sup>You shall not seek their peace nor their prosperity all your days forever."

**Ruth 4:13-17** "<sup>13</sup>So Boaz took Ruth and she became his wife; and when he went in to her, the Lord gave her conception, and she bore a son. <sup>14</sup>Then the women said to Naomi, 'Blessed be the Lord, who has not left you this day without a close relative; and may his name be famous in Israel! <sup>15</sup>And may he be to you a restorer of life and a nourisher of your old age; for your daughter-in-law, who loves you, who is better to you than seven sons, has borne him.' <sup>16</sup>Then Naomi took the child and laid him on her bosom, and became a nurse to him.<sup>17</sup>Also the neighbor women gave him a name, saying, 'There is a son born to Naomi.' And they called his name Obed. He *is* the father of Jesse, the father of David."

If we look closely, we can see that God's plan for Ruth had been changed. Ruth, who was to be part of the genealogical line of the Lord Jesus Christ, found herself in the land of Moab, among the Moabite people whom the Lord had banished from His assembly. She found herself, in spite of herself, a widow of a man who, although being of Judah, was not her original husband.

Ruth 1:1-22 "Now it came to pass, in the days when the judges ruled, that there was a famine in the land. And a certain man of Bethlehem, Judah, went to dwell in the country of Moab, he and his wife and his two sons. <sup>2</sup>The name of the man was Elimelech, the name of his wife was Naomi, and the names of his two sons were Mahlon and Chilion - Ephrathites of Bethlehem, Judah. And they went to the country of Moab and remained there. <sup>3</sup>Then Elimelech, Naomi's husband, died; and she was left, and her two sons. <sup>4</sup>Now they took wives of the women of Moab: the name of the one was Orpah, and the name of the other Ruth. And they dwelt there about ten years. <sup>5</sup>Then both Mahlon and Chilion also died; so the woman survived her two sons and her husband. <sup>6</sup>Then she arose with her daughters-in-law that she might return from the country of Moab, for she had heard in the country of Moab that the Lord had visited His people by giving them bread. <sup>7</sup>Therefore she went out from the place where she was, and her two daughters-in-law with her; and they went on the way to return to the land of Judah.<sup>8</sup> And Naomi said to her two daughters-in-law, 'Go, return each to her mother's house. The Lord deal kindly with you, as you have dealt with the dead and with me.

<sup>9</sup>The Lord grant that you may find rest, each in the house of her husband.' Then she kissed them, and they lifted up their voices and wept. <sup>10</sup>And they said to her, 'Surely we will return with you to your people.' <sup>11</sup>But Naomi said, 'Turn back, my daughters; why will you go with me? Are there still sons in my womb, that they may be your husbands? <sup>12</sup>Turn back, my daughters, go - for I am too old to have a husband. If I should say, I have hope, if I should have a husband tonight and should also bear sons, <sup>13</sup>would you wait for them till they were grown? Would you restrain yourselves from having husbands? No, my daughters; for it grieves me very much for your sakes that the hand of the Lord has gone out against me! <sup>14</sup>Then they lifted up their voices and wept again; and

#### **1000 YEARS IN THE WORLD OF DARKNESS**

Orpah kissed her mother-in-law, but Ruth clung to her. <sup>15</sup>And she said, 'Look, your sister-in-law has gone back to her people and to her gods; return after your sister-in-law. <sup>16</sup>But Ruth said: 'Entreat me not to leave you, Or to turn back from following after you; for wherever you go, I will go; and wherever you lodge, I will lodge; **your people shall be my people, and your God, my God**. <sup>17</sup>Where you die, I will die, And there will I be buried. The Lord do so to me, and more also, If anything but death parts you and me.' <sup>18</sup>When she saw that she was determined to go with her, she stopped speaking to her.

<sup>19</sup>Now the two of them went until they came to Bethlehem. And it happened, when they had come to Bethlehem, that all the city was excited because of them; and the women said, 'Is this Naomi?' <sup>20</sup>But she said to them, 'Do not call me Naomi; call me Mara, for the Almighty has dealt very bitterly with me. <sup>21</sup>I went out full, and the Lord has brought me home again empty. Why do you call me Naomi, since the Lord has testified against me, and the Almighty has afflicted me?' <sup>22</sup>So Naomi returned, and Ruth the Moabitess her daughter-in-law with her, who returned from the country of Moab. Now they came to Bethlehem at the beginning of barley harvest."

As you have just read, her spirit clung to the spirit of her mother-in-law Naomi, and she vowed not to separate herself from her. She declared, even without understanding the depth of what she was saying, that her mother-in-law's people would be her people, and her mother-in-law's God her God. The Spirit of God within her had made her recognize her true God and her true people. By this commitment she had made to let only death separate her from her motherin-law, it was her true "Master Plan" that God was restoring. It took this exceptional loyalty, which she showed to her mother-in-law for her to find her true people and her place in the lineage of the Saviour.

### 23.5.4- Paul's case

**Galatians 1:13-16** "<sup>13</sup>For you have heard of my former conduct in Judaism, how I persecuted the church of God beyond measure and tried to destroy it. <sup>14</sup>And I advanced in Judaism beyond many of my contemporaries in my own nation, being more exceedingly zealous for the traditions of my fathers. <sup>15</sup>But when it pleased God, who separated me from my mother's womb and called me through His grace, <sup>16</sup>to reveal His Son in me, that I might preach Him among the Gentiles, I did not immediately confer with flesh and blood."

**1Timothy 1:12-14** "<sup>12</sup>And I thank Christ Jesus our Lord who has enabled me, because He counted me faithful, putting me into the ministry, <sup>13</sup>although I was formerly a blasphemer, a persecutor, and an insolent man; but I obtained mercy because I did it ignorantly in unbelief. <sup>14</sup>And the grace of our Lord was exceedingly abundant, with faith and love which are in Christ Jesus."

If we look closely, we can see that God's plan for Paul had been changed. Paul, destined to be a minister of God, ended up a fierce persecutor of the very God who had **set him apart from his mother's womb**. When the time for ministry came, God reprogrammed his "Master Plan", making him what he was supposed to be, an Apostle of Jesus Christ to the Gentiles. But you all know what this satanic plan against his life cost him. If you still doubted the wickedness of satan against the Ministers of God, I have just given you another proof.

## 24- Call to Repentance

#### **24.1-** Message to sorcerers and other satanists

To all of you who are in sorcery, in occultism, and in satanic sects such as Freemasonry, Rosicrucianism and other esoteric lodges, you who spend all your nights in cemeteries, in abominable meetings in the world of satan, know that your end will be sad. Lucifer, whom you are serving at the moment, knows very well that Hell awaits him for eternity. It is a trap that he is setting for you so that you will suffer the same fate as him. Do not fall into his trap. Stop believing his lie. You may be tempted to ask yourself if it is not too late for you, or if it will still be possible for you to break free from the pact signed with lucifer, and be forgiven after all the abominations you have engaged in. The answer is yes. Jesus Christ is ready to forgive you all your faults and crimes, no matter how serious they are. Give your life to Him now, and seek refuge in Him. If you want to accept Jesus Christ as your Lord, your personal Saviour, and your new Master, get on your knees and sincerely invite Him into your heart. He will accept you and lead you on the path to your total deliverance. Also feel free to contact us.

## 24.2- Message to the true children of God

Know beloved, that satan and his agents have always raged against the true people of God. I am not speaking of course of this abominable people who occupy the lands of Israel at present. I am talking about the true people of God. This ferocious war that has been going on since creation is still going on, and will end at the appointed time. And fortunately, this appointed time is not far off. In the meantime, the true Children of God must continue to sanctify their lives.

For you, true Children of God, trust in Jesus Christ the only true God. The war that satan is waging against Him, is a war lost since the creation, and confirmed 2000 years ago. As you can read in the book of Esther, when satan through Haman had taken the decision to exterminate the Jewish people, it was to be sure that neither the prophets of God before John the Baptist, nor John the Baptist himself, nor Jesus, nor the disciples before, nor us, arrived on earth. But as you see, he had failed, as he failed in all the attempts he made against the people of God. And it is not now that he will succeed. His defeat before Jesus Christ, the King of kings, is eternal and irreversible according to the decree of Heaven. Even this last war that he is currently waging against the true people of God, is doomed to failure. The defeat of satan and all his agents before Jesus Christ is irrevocable.

**Esther 3:8-11** "<sup>8</sup>Then Haman said to King Ahasuerus, 'There is a certain people scattered and dispersed among the people in all the provinces of your kingdom; their laws are different from all other people's, and they do not keep the king's laws. Therefore it is not fitting for the king to let them remain. <sup>9</sup>If it pleases the king, let a decree be written that they be destroyed, and I will pay ten thousand talents of silver into the hands of those who do the work, to bring it into the king's treasuries.' <sup>10</sup>So the king took his signet ring from his hand and gave it to Haman, the son of Hammedatha the Agagite, the enemy of the Jews. <sup>11</sup>And the king said to Haman, 'The money and the people are given to you, to do with them as seems good to you."

## 25- Conclusion

All this analysis that we have just done, proves to us that the testimony of **1000 Years In The World Of Darkness**, is well justified by the Bible. Whether it is the case of demons coming into the world in the flesh, or the possibility for the world of darkness to spot the true servants of God before they are born, or the possibility for the world of darkness to change the plan that God has foreseen for humans, or the notion of the Star of each child of God, all that is confirmed by the Bible. All you have to do is take God seriously, take the Bible seriously, and get your life in order before God. If you have not yet given your life to Jesus Christ, now is the time to do so. And if you are already born again, baptized in water in the name of Jesus Christ and baptized in the Holy Spirit, now is the time to ensure that you have both feet firmly in the Lord Jesus Christ, and not one foot in witchcraft, and the other supposedly in the Church. Keep in mind that Hell really does burn, and it is eternal. Pray fervently for God to reprogram your master plan.

## Grace to all who love our Lord Jesus Christ with an undying love!

# Invitation

Dear brothers and sisters,

If you have run away from fake churches and would like to know what to do, here are the two options available to you:

1- See if around you there are some other children of God who fear God and desire to live according to the Sound Doctrine. If you find any, feel free to join them.

2- If you do not find one and wish to join us, our doors are open to you. The only thing we will ask you to do is to first read all the Teachings that the Lord has given us, and which are on our website www.mcreveil.org, to reassure yourself that they are in conformity with the Bible. If you find them in accordance with the Bible, and are ready to submit to Jesus Christ, and live by the demands of His word, we will gladly welcome you.

The grace of the Lord Jesus be with you!